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BANK OF AMERICA MALAYSIA BERHAD
(Incorporated in Malaysia)

DIRECTORS' REPORT
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2011

The Directors hereby submit their report together with the audited financial statements of Bank of
America Malaysia Berhad ("the Bank"} for the financial year ended 31 December 2011.
PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Bank is principally engaged in all aspects of banking business and the provision of such
related services.

There have been no significant changes in these activities during the financial year.

FINANCIAL RESULTS

RM'000
Profit before taxation 17,834
Taxation (3,682)
Net prefit for the financial year 14,152

DIVIDENDS

No dividends have been paid or declared by the Bank since the end of the last financial year. The
Directors do not recommend the payment of any dividends for the financial year ended 31
December 2011. .

RESERVES AND PROVISIONS

There were no material transfers to or from reserves or provisions during the financial year other
than those disciosed in the financial statements and notes to the financial statements.

BAD AN D\Q_OUBTFUL DEBTS

Before the financial statements of the Bank were made out, the Directors took reasonable steps to
ascertain that proper action had been taken in relation to the writing off of bad debts and the
making of allowance for doubtful debts and satisfied themselves that all known bad debts had
been written off and that adequate allowance had been made for bad and doubtful debts.

At the date of this report, the Directors are not aware of any circumstances which would render the
amount written off for bad debts or the amount of the allowance for doubtful debts in the financial
statements of the Bank inadequate to any substantial extent,
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BANK OF AMERICA MALAYSIA BERHAD
(Incorporated in Malaysia) :

DIRECTORS’ REPORT
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2011 (CONTINUED)

CURRENT ASSETS

Before the financial statements of the Bank were made out, the Directors took reasonable steps to
ascertain that the value of any current assets, other than debts, which were unlikely to realise in
the ordinary course of business, their values as shown in the accounting records of the Bank have
been written down to an amount which they might be expected to realise. .

~ At the date of this report, the Directors are not aware of any circumstances which would render the
values attributed to the current assets in the financial statements of the Bank misleading.
VALUATION METHODS
At the date of this report, the Directors are not aware of any circumstances which have arisen
which render adherence to the existing method of valuation of assets or liabilities of the Bank
misleading or inappropriate.
CONTINGENT AND OTHER LIABILITIES
At the date of this report, there does not exist:

(@) any charge on the assets of the Bank which has arisen since the end of the financial year
which secures the liabilittes of any other person, or

(b} any contingent liability in respect of the Bank which has arisen since the end of the
financial year other than in the ordinary course of business.

No contingent or other liability of the Bank has become enforceable, or is likely to become
enforceable within the period of twelve months after the end of the financial year which, in the
opinion of the Directors, will or may substantially affect the ability of the Bank to meet its
obligations when they fall due.

CHANGE OF CIRCUMSTANCES

At the date.of this report, the Directors are not aware of any circumstances, not otherwise dealt
with in this report or the financial statements of the Bank, which would render any amount stated in
the financial statements misleading or inappropriate.

ITEMS OF AN UNUSUAL NATURE
In the opinion of the Directors:; .

(a) the results of the operations of the Bank during the financial year were not substantiafly
affected by any item, fransaction or event of a material and unusual nature; and

(b) there has not arisen in the interval between the end of the financial year and the date of
this report any item, transaction or event of a material and unusual nature likely to affect
substantially the results of the operations of the Bank for the financial year in which this
report is made.
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BANK OF AMERICA MALAYSIA BERHAD
(Incorporated in Malaysia)

DIRECTORS’ REPORT
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2011 (CONTINUED)

DIRECTORS OF THE BANK

The Directors of the Bank in office since the date of the Jast report and at the date of this report are
as follows:

Richard David Maloney Jr- {appointed on 1 November 2011)
Ong Guat Kee {(appointed on 1 March 2012)
Mohamad Abdul Naser Md Jaafar (resigned on 1 March 2012)

Tan Sri Date' Ir (Dr) Wan Abdul Rahman bin Wan Yaacob

Henry Talmadge Pelaez

Dato’ Chew Kong Seng

Hu Koon Phei

Ernest Mak Hin Mun (resigned on 1 November 2011)

In accordance with Article 100 of the Bank’s Articles of Association, all the Directors shall retire
from the Board at the forthcoming Annua! General Meeting and, being eligible, offer themselves for
re-eiection.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS

According to the Register of Directors’ shareholdings maintained by the Bank in accordance with
Section 134 of the Companies Act, 1965, none of the Directors in office at the end of the financial
year held any interests in shares in or debentures of the Bank.

According to the Register of Director's shareholdings maintained by the Bank in accordance with
Section 134 of the Companies Act, 1965, the interest of Directors in the shares, Employees’ Share
Opticn Scheme and Associate Share Option Scheme of Bank of America Corporation during the
financial year is as follows:

Number of ordinary shares of USD1.00 each

Shares held by Directors in their own name

As at As at

1 Jan 2011 Acquired! Granted Disposed 31 Dec 2011

Richard D;?f“ld Maloney Jr - 6,522 (3,000) 3,522
Hu Koon Phei - 3,597 - 3,597

Number of unissued ordinary shares of USD1.00 each

Share Options held by Directors in their cwn name
As at ‘' Asat
1 Jan 2011 Granted Exercised Lapsed 31 Dec 2011

Mchamad Abdul Naser
Md Jaafar 1,000 1,531 - - 2,531
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DIRECTORS' REPORT
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2011 (CONTINUED)

DIRECTORS' BENEFITS

Since the end of the previous financiat year, no Director has received or become entitled to receive
any benefit (other than as disclosed in the financial statements) by reason of a contract made by
the Bank or a related company with the Director or with a firm of which the Director is a member,
or with a company in which the Director has a substantial financial interest.

Neither at the end of the financial year, nor at any time during the financial year, did there subsist
any other arrangements to which the Bank is a party with the object or objects of enabling
Directors of the Bank to acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of shares in, or debenture of,
the Bank or any other body corporate.

HOLDING AND ULTIMATE HOLDING COMPANY

The Directors regard Bank America International Financial Corporation, a corporation incorporated
in the United States of America, as the holding company and Bank of America Corporation, a
corporation incorporated in the United States of America, as the ultimate holding company.

RISK MANAGEMENT FRAMEWORK

The Bank adopts a risk management framework which is consistent with Bank of America’s global
risk management policies and procedures. This framework focuses on all aspects of risk namely
credit, market, liquidity and operational risks. In addition, it ensures that the appropriate levels of
due diligence, contrals, risk tolerance and shareholder perspective are taken into consideration
when making each and every business decision.

BUSINESS PLAN AND STRATEGY FOR FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2011

The Bank continued to operate as a Working Capital Management (“WCM”} unit for the ninth full
year since the reorganisation of the Bank in 2001. In line with this, the Bank’s operations are
concentrated on working capital products and services. The Bank's major clients are
.multinationals, financial institutions and international multi lateral agencies requiring trade and
cash manggement services. Credit facilities are extended to support activities in the area of
working capital, trade finance and foreign exchange.

OUTLOOK FOR FINANCIAL YEAR 2012

The Bank’s performance in the financial year ended 31 December 2011 has demonstrated the
continuation and growth of the working capital management model comprising of treasury
management, foreign exchange, payments and receipts, short-term and long term borrowings,
trade finance, short-term investing and short-term foreign exchange. Towards the end of the year,
the Bank embarked on setting up the new Fixed Income, Currency and Commodity (“FICC")
business and Corporate Banking team.
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2011 (CONTINUED)

OUTLOOK FOR FINANCIAL YEAR 2012 (CONTINUED)

The business strategy for 2012 will be focused on the launch of the FICC business in Malaysia
which was approved by Bank Negara Malaysia via letter dated 13 January 2012. The business
expansion in Malaysia is to leverage the depths of the business network of legacy Merrill Lynch in
Malaysia. Products and services supporting the business expansion include treasury
management, foreign exchange, cash management, trade services, short-term and long term
borrowings and short-term investments.

The Bank will expand beyond the existing multinational portfolio to cover local corporations. This
will include trade finance opportunities and the cross selling of other banking solutions. The Bank
will continue to be mindful of the Priority Sector Lending targets in line with the government’s effort
to support the growth of Small and Medium Enterprises.

NOMINATION, REMUNERATION AND RISK MANAGEMENT COMMITTEES

The Bank has received the approval from Bank Negara Malaysia (“BNM*) via letter dated 2
November 2004 to dispense the establishment of the Nomination, Remuneration and Risk
Management Committees.

In compliance with BNM's requirement, the full Board of Directors of the Bank undertakes the
responsibility for the roles of each of the three sub-committees.

The Bank has received the approval from BNM via letter dated 23 June 2006 and 12 February
2008 for the Audit Committee to assume the roles and responsibilities of the Risk Management
Committee and for the Board of Directors to assume the roles and responsibilities of the
Nomination and Remuneration Committee. '

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE STATEMENT
introduction

The Board of Directors of the Bank is pleased to report on the application by the Bank of the
principles-contained in the Malaysian Code on Corporate Govemnance (‘Code’) and the extent of
compliance with the best practices of the Code. Although the Bank is not a listed company, the
Board has endeavoured to apply the principles and comply with the relevant best practices of
corporate governance as set out in the Code.
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2011 (CONTINUED)

BOARD OF DIRECTORS -
The Board

The Board subscribes to the principles of good corporate governance and as such, will always
ensure that the Bank achieve best practice in the conduct of the Bank’s business and operational
activities. An indication of the Board's commitment is reflected in the conduct of regutar Board
meetings by the Bank and the incorporation of various processes and systems to achieve a risk
awareness culture as well as the establishment of relevant Board Commitiees and Management
Committees at the Bank.

Compeosition of the Board

As of 31 December 2011, the Board has six (6) members, comprising the Chairman/Non-
Executive Director, Executive Director (2), Non-Executive Director (1), Independent Director (2}, as
follows:- :

Designation

Richard David Maloney Jr Chairman/Non-Executive Director
Mohamad Abdul Naser Md Jaafar Executive Director
Hu Koon Phei Executive Director
Henry Talmadge Pelaez Non-Executive Director
Tan Sri Dato’ Ir (Dr} Wan Abdul

Rahman bin Wan Yaacob independent Director
Dato’ Chew Kong Seng i Independent Director

The directors bring together to the Board a wide range of business management skills, as well as
banking and financial experience required for the management of the Bank in the country. All
Board members participate fully in the deliberation and decision-making process on the key issues
involving the Bank. '

There are clear division of responsibilities between the Board and the Chief Executive Officer
('CEQ’) to ensure the balance of power and authority. The CEQ’s primary responsibilities are to
manage the Bank’s day-to-day operations and together with the Non-Executive Directors ensure
that the sQEaI;tegies are fully discussed and examined, and taking into account the long term
interests of the various stakeholders including shareholders, employees, customners, suppliers and
the various communities in which the Bank conducts its business. In addition to the role and
guidance of the Independent Directors, each director nevertheless brings an independent
judgement to bear on issues of strategy, performance, resources and standards of conduct.

All decisions of the Board are based on the decision of the majority and no single Board member
can make any decisions on behalf of the Board, unless duly authorised by the Board of Directors.
As such, no individual or a group of individuals dominates the decision making process. This
enables the Board to effectively discharge its principal responsibilities as set out in the Code.
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DIRECTORS' REPORT
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2011 (CONTINUED)

BOARD OF DIRECTORS (CONTINUED)

Board Meetings -

The Board meets on a scheduled basis at least once in two months with additional meetings held
when urgent issues and important decisions are required to be taken between the scheduled
meetings.

The Board met 7 times during the financial year ended 31 December 2011. The attendance of
each director in office at the end of the financial year on the aforesaid Board meetings are set out
below:-

Director Meetings Attended of Total Attendance %

Mohamad Abdul Naser Md Jaafar 6/7 ‘ 86%
Executive Director

Hu Koon Phei B6/7 86%
Executive Director

Tan Sri Dato' Ir (Dr) Wan Abdul 77 100%

Rahman bin Wan Yaacob
Independent Director

Henry Talmadge Pelaez 7 100%
Non-Executive Director

Richard David Maloney Jr 2/2 100%
Chairman/Non-Executive Director

Dato’ Chew Kong Seng - 77 100%

Independent Director

Scheduled board meetings are structured with a pre-set agenda. The Board's principal focus
amongst others is the overall strategic direction, financial and corporate developments of the Bank.
Key matters such as the Bank’'s business and marketing strategy, quarterly financials, material
contracts, major capital expenditure and credit policies and guidelines are reserved for the Board's
decision. The directors are kept abreast of the Bank’s performance via the various monthly reports
tabled at'thg Board meetings and Board commitiee meetings. The reports include the financial
reports, major capital expenditure reports, credit reports, risk reports and audit reports. Minutes of
meetings of the various committees of the Bank are tabled to the Board for notation. Agenda and
Board papers are circulated prior to the Board meetings to give directors appropriate time to
consider and deliberate on the issues to be raised at the Board meetings. The directors have full
access to the senior management of the Bank and the advice and services of the Company
Secretary. ..

In addition, the directors may also seek independent professional advice, at the Bank's expense, if
required. Directors may also consult with the Chairman and other Board members prior to seeking
any independent professional advice.
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2011 (CONTINUED)

DISCLOSURE OF BOARD COMMITTEES
Audit Commitiee

The Board has established the Audit Committee since 1994. The Committee presently comprises
two (2) Independent Directors of which one is the Chairman and one (1) Non-Executive Director.
During the financial year ended 31 December 2011, a total of 6 meetings were held and details of
attendance of each member at the Audit Committee meetings held during the year as at 31
December 2011 are as follows:-

Compoesition of the Audit Committee Attendance at the committee meetings
Richard David Maloney Jr 171
Tan Sri Dato’ Ir (Dr) Wan Abdul
Rahman bin Wan Yaacob 6/6
Dato' Chew Keng Seng (Chairman) 6/6

The Audit Committee meets regularly to review the Bank’s financial reporting, the nature, scope
and results of audit reviews, and the effectiveness of the system of internal controls and
compliance. The local management team, corporate audit, operational risk management team as
well as the external auditors are invited to these meetings as and when necessary.

Terms of Reference of Audit Committee

Objectives
. To review the financial condition and performance of the Bank.
. To review the adequacy and integrity of the Bank's internal control systems and

management information systems, including systems for compliance with applicable laws,
regulations, rules, directives and guidelines.

. To review the findings of the corporate audit and operational risk management team and
to recommend appropriate remedial actions.

+ Toveinforce the independence of the external auditors and thereby help assure that they
will have free rein in the audit process and to provide, by way of regular meetings, a line of
communication between the Board and the external auditors.

Primary Responsibilities

. Ensure that the accounts are prepared in a timely and accurate manner with frequent
reviews of the adequacy of provisions against contingencies, and bad and doubtful
financings. Review the balance sheet and income statement for submission to the Board
of Directors and ensure the prompt publication of annual accounts;

. Review internal controls, including the scope of the internal audit programme, the
corporate audit findings, and recommend actions to be taken by management. The reports
of corporate audit team and the Committee should not be subject to the clearance of the
Executive Directors;
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2011 (CONTINUED)

DISCLOSURE OF BOARD COMMITTEES (CONTINUED)

Terms of Reference of Audit Committee {continued)

Primary Responsibilities (continued)

+

*

Review with the external auditors, the scope of their audit plan, the system of internal
accounting controls, the audit reports, the assistance given by the management and its
staff to the auditors and any findings and action to be taken. The Audit Committee should
also select external auditors for appointment by the Board each year and recommend their
fees to the Board for approval;

Delegation of authority including authorisation limits at various levels of management and
those requiring the Board's approval are documented and designed to ensure
accountability and responsibility; :

Policies and procedures manuals for key processes are documented and regularly
updated for application at the Bank. These are supplemented by operating standards set
by the Bank, as required for the type of business of the Bank;

Regular and comprehensive information is provided to management for monitoring of
performance against the strategic plan approved by the Board, covering all key financial
and operational indicators;

Ongoing reviews of the internal contrel system are carried out by the corporate audit and
operational risk management team. Results of such reviews are reported to the Audit
Committee; _

The Audit Committee holds regular meetings to deliberate on findings and
recommendations for improvement by the corporate audit, operational risk management
team and external auditors on the state of the internal control system. The minutes of the
Audit Committee meetings are tabied to the Board;

There is clear procedure for investment appraisal, including equity investment or
divestment and capital expenditure;

Réﬁew any related party transactions that may arise within the banking institution's group;

To perform any other functions as defined by the Board.

Authority

*

The Committee is authorised by the Board to investigate any matter within its terms of
reference, to obtain the resources which it needs, and to have full and unrestricted access
to information. It is also authorised to seek any information it requires from any employee
of the Bank and all employees are directed to co-operate with any request made by the
Committee.
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DISCLOSURE OF BOARD COMMITTEES (CONTINUED)

Terms of Reference of Audit Committee (continued)

Authority (continued)

. The Committee shall have direct communication channels with the external auditors and
corporate audit team.

. The Committee is authorised by the Board to obtain independent professional or other
advice at the Bank's expense and to invite outsiders with relevant experience and
expertise to attend meetings if it considers this necessary.

Meetings

* Meetings shall be held at least six (6) times, once every two months, with a majority
guorum. Additional meetings may be called at any time at the discretion of the Chairman
of the Committee,

. The Committee may invite the local management team, corporate audit, operational risk
management team and the external auditors of the Bank to be in attendance during
meetings to assist in its deliberations.

. Upon the request of the external auditors, the Chairman of the Committee shall convene a
meeting to consider any matter which the external auditors believe shouid be brought to
the attention of the Board or shareholders.

+ The Bank’s Secretary shall be the Sécretary of the Committee.

. The minutes of each Committee meeting shall be tabled to the Board by the Chairman of
the Committee,

Composition

. The Committee shall be appointed by the Board from amongst its number and shall
carmprise not less than three (3) members, none of whom should be full-time employees of
the Bank,

. The majority of the Audit Committee members should be Independent Directors.

. The Chairman of the Committee shall be an Independent Director appointed by the Board.

. No alternate director shall be appointed as a member of the Committee. '

Relationship with the Auditors

. The Board maintains a formal and transparent professional relationship with the auditors,
through the Audit Committee.

10
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RATING BY AGENCIES

The Bank was not rated by any rating agencies during the financial year.

AUDITORS

The auditors, PricewaterhouseCoopers, have expressed their willingness to continue in office.

Signed on behalf of the Board of Directors in accordance with their resolution.

el

-

NG GUAT KEE RICHARD DAVID MALONEY JR
DIRECTOR DIRECTOR

Kuala Lumpur

2 3 WMAY 2012

11
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STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

AS AT 31 DECEMBER 2011

ASSETS

Cash and short-term funds

Deposits and placements with banks
Securities available-for-sale (‘AFS")

Loans, advances and financing

Other assets

Derivative assets

Tax recoverable

Statutory deposit with Bank Negara Malaysia
Property, plant and equipment

TOTAL ASSETS

LIABILITIES AND SHAREHOLDERS' FUNDS

Deposits from customers

Deposits and placements of banks and
other financial institutions

Bills and acceptances payable

Other liabilities

Derivative liabilities

Deferred tax liabilities

TOTAL LIABEILITIES
Share capital
Reserves

Sharehoclders’ funds
™~

=
Q
=
(0]

N

©w 0 DN hw

10
11

12
13

14
15

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND SHAREHOLDERS' FUNDS

COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES

12

24

1,279,956
6,006
54,249
185,256
1,147
19,567
2,334
1,000
9,823

1,559,338

953,926

56,175
37,839
2,522
18,360
1,283

1,070,105

135,800
353,433

489,233
1,559,338

2,657,734

2010
RM'000

1,216,984

118,885
293,118
2,225
17,500
588

900
7,427

1,657,627

819,651

302,520
37,487
2,284
19,446
1,243

1,182,611

135,800
339,216

475,016
1,667,627

2,319,860

LN
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STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2011

Notg 2011
RM'000
Interest income 16 37,867
Interest expense 17 (9,444)
Net interest income 28,423
Other operating income 18 23,928
Net income 52,351
Other operating expenses 19 (37,020}
Profit before allowance ' 15,331
Write back of losses on loans, advances
and financing 21 . 2,503
Profit before taxation 17,834
Taxation 23 (3,682)
Net profit for the financial year 14,152
Other comprehensive income:
Fair value reserve:
Net change in fair value of securities available-for-sale 86
Income tax relating to component of other
comprehensive income . (21)
Other comprehensive income 65
Total comprehensive income for the year 14,217
Earnings per share (sen) 25 10.42
‘M\ ———

13

2010
RM'000

33,062
(5,957)

27,105
19,117

46,222

(21,267)

24,9855

4,685

20,640

(7,569)

22,071

462
(110
352

22,423

16.25
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STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2011

Nen distributable

Distributable

Share  Statutory Revaluation Retained
capital reserve reserve profit Total
RM'000 RM'000 RM'C00 RM'000 RM'000
At 1 January 2011 135,8'00 122,835 1.827 214,554 475,016
Net profit for the financial year - - - 14,152 14,152
Other comprehensive income - - 85 - 65
Transfer to statutory reserve - 3,638 - (3,538) -
At 31 December 2011 135,800 126,373 1,892 225,168 489,233
At 1 January 2010 135,800 117,317 1,475 198,001 452,593
Net profit for the financial year - - - 22,071 22,071
Other comprehensive income - - 352 - 352
Transfer to statutory reserve - 5518 - (6,518) -
At 31 December 2010 135,800 122,835 1,827 214,554 475016

14
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STATEMENT OF CASH FLOW
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2011

2011
RM’'000
CASH FLOWS FRCM/(USED IN) OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Profit before tax for the financial year 17,834
Adjustments for:
Depreciation of property, plant and eguipment 3,865
Net amount write back in respect of losses on :
loans, advances and financing (2,386)
Dividend income from securities available-for-sale {13)
Net unrealised loss on fair value changes on derivatives (1,193)
Accretion of discount - (1,887)
Gains in disposal of property, plant and equipment (1
Fixed assets written off ‘ -
OPERATING PROFIT BEFORE WORKING
CAPITAL CHANGES 16,219
(Increase)/decrease in operatihg assets:
Deposits and placements with banks {6,0086)
Loans, advances and financing 110,248
Other assets 1,078
Derivative assets (874)
- Statutory deposit with Bank Negara Malaysia (100)
Increase/(decrease) in operating liabilities: -
Deposits from customers 134,275
Deposits and ptacements of banks and cther
financial institutions (246,345)
Bills and acceptances payable 372
Other liabilities 238
Derivative liabilities (1,086)
CASH FLBWS GENERATED FROM/(USED IN)
OPERATING ACTIVITIES 8,019
Taxation paid (5,409)
NET CASH GENERATED FROM/{(USED IN)

OPERATING ACTIVITIES 2,810

15

29,640

1,073
(4,685)
(13)

1,846
(2,403)

95

25,653

(‘152,065;)
(18,614)

(93,802)
238,255

(38,937)
14,442

(25,066)

(4,903)

'(29,960)
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STATEMENT OF CASH FLOW
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2011 (CONTINUED)

Note 2011 2010
RM'000 RM'000
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Dividend received from securities
available-for-sale 13 13
Purchase of property, plant and equipment (6,262) (7,042)
Proceeds from disposal of property, plant
and equipment 2 -
Net disposal of securities available-for-sale 66,609 19,278
NET CASH GENERATED FROM INVESTING
ACTIVITIES 60,362 12,249
NET INCREASE/(DECREASE) IN CASH AND
CASH EQUIVALENTS 62,972 (17,720)
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
AT 1 JANUARY 1,216,284 1,234,704
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

AT 31 DECEMBER 2 1,279,956 1,216,984

18
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND CRITICAL
ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND ASSUMPTIONS FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR
ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2011

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The following accounting policies have been applied consistently in dealing with items which are
considered material in relation to the financial statements.

BASIS OF PREPARATION

The financial statements of the Bank have been prepared under historical cost convention unless
otherwise indicated in this summary of significant accounting policies.

The financial statements comply with the Financial Reporting Standards (“FRS"), the Malaysian
Accounting Standards Board ("MASB”) Approved Accounting Standards in Malaysia for Entities
Cther than Private Entities, Bank Negara Malaysia ("‘BNM"} Guidelines and the provisions of the
Companies Act, 1965.

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with Financial Reporting Standards requires
the use of certain critical accounting estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts
of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial
statements, and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the reported year. |t also
requires Directors to exercise their judgement in the process of applying the Bank's accounting
policies. Although these estimates are based on the Directors’ best knowledge of current events
and actions, actual results may differ from estimates.

The areas involving a higher degree of judgment or complexity, or areas where assumptions and
estimates are significant to the financial statements are disclosed in Secticn 2.

(a) Standards, amendments to published standards and interpretations that are effective and
applicable to the Bank

The new accounting standards, amendments and improvements to published standards and
interpretations that are effective for the Bank’s financial year beginning on or after 1 January
2011 are as follows:

. Revised FRS 1 “First-ime Adoption of Financial Reporting Standards”

. Amendment to FRS 7 “Financial instruments: Disclosures - improving disclosures

. aboutfinancial instruments"

. Amendments to FRS 1 “First-time adoption of financial reporting standards”

. Amendment to FRS 132 "Financial instruments: Presentation ~ Classification of
rights issues”

. IC Interpretation 4 “Determining whether an arrangement contains a lease’

. Improvements to FRSs {2010)

The adoption of the new accounting standards, amendments and imprO\:'e'ments to
published standards and interpretations do not have a material impact on the financial
statements of the Bank,
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(b} Standards, amendments to published standards and interpretations to existing standards
that are applicable to the Bank but not yet effective

In the next financial year, the Bank will be adopting the new IFRS-compliant framework,
Malaysian Financial Reporting Standards (‘MFRS”). In adopting the new framework, the
Bank will be applying MFRS1 “First-time adoption of MFRS”. MFRS 1 “First-time adoption
of MFRS” provides for certain optional exemptions and certain mandatory exceptions for
first-time MFRS adopters. .

() Financial year beginning on/after 1 January 2012

= MFRS 139 “Financial instruments: recognition and measurement’- Bank Negara
Malaysia has removed the transitional provision for banking institutions on loan
impairment assessment and provisioning to comply with the MFRS 139
reguirements.

. The revised MFRS 124 “Related party disclosures” (effective from 1 January
2012) removes the exemption to disclose transactions between government-
related entities and the government, and all other government-related entities. The
following new disclosures are now required for government related entities:

- The name of the government and the nature of their relationship;

- The nature and amount of each individually significant transactions; and

- The extent of any collectively significant transactions, qualitatively or
quantitatively.

] Amendment to MFRS 112 “Income taxes’ (effective from 1 January 2012)
introduces an exception to the existing principle for the measurement of deferred
tax assets or liabilities arising on investment property measured at fair value.
MFRS112 currently requires an entity to measure the deferred tax relating to an
asset depending on whether the entity expects to recover the subjeciive to assess

N whether recovery will be through use or through sale when the asset is measured
using the fair value model in MFRS140 “Investment property”. As a resuit of the
amendments, IC interpretation 121 “Income taxes-recovery of revalued non-
depreciable assets” will no lenger apply to investment properties carried at fair
vatue. The amendments also incorporate into MFRS112 the remaining guidance
previously contained in IC Interpretation 121 which is withdrawn.

] Amendment to MFRS 1 "First time adoption on fixed dates and hyperinflation”
(effective from 1 January 2012) includes two changes to MFRS 1. The first
replaces references to a fixed date of 1 January 2004 with ‘the date of transition to
MFRSs’, thus eliminating the need for entities adopting MFRSs for the first time to
restate de-recognition transactions that occurred before the date of transition to
MFRSs. The second amendment provides guidance on how an entity should
resume presenting financial statements in accordance with MFRSs after a period
when the entity was unable to comply with MFRSs because its functional currency
was subject to severe hyperinflation.
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(b} Standards, amendments to published standards and interpretations to existing standards
that are applicable to the Bank but not yet effective (continued)

(i Financial year beginning on/after 1 January 2012 (continued)

. Amendment to MFRS 7 “Financial instruments: Disclosures on transfers of
financial assets” (effective from 1 January 2012) promotes transparency in the
reporting of transfer transactions and improve users’ understanding of the risk
exposures relating to transfers of financial assets and the effect of those risks on
an entity’s financial position, particularly those involving securitisation of financial

assets.
D] Financial year beginning on/after 1 January 2013
" MFRS 13 “Fair value measurement” (effective from 1 January 2013) aims to

improve consistency and reduce complexity by providing a precise definition of fair
value and a single source of fair value measurement and disclosure requirements
for use across MFRSs. The requirements o not extend the use of fair value
accounting but provide guidance on how it should be applied where its use is
already required or permitted by other standards. The enhanced disclosure
requirements are similar to those in MFRS 7 “Financial instruments: Disclosures”,
but apply to ail assets and liabilities measured at fair value, not just financial ones.

. Amendment to MFRS 101 “Financial statement presentation” (effective from 1 July
2012) requires entities to separate items presented in ‘other comprehensive
income’ (OCI) in the statement of comprehensive income into two groups, hased
on whether or not they may be recycled to profit or loss in the future. The
amendments do not address which items are presented in OCI.

. Amendment to MFRS 119 “Employee benefits” (effective from 1 January 2013)

~~ Mmakes significant changes to the recognition and measurement of defined benefit
pension expense and termination benefits, and to the disclosures for all employge
benefits. Actuarial gains and losses will no longer be deferred using the corridor
approach. MFRS 119 shall be withdrawn on application of this amendment.
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(b) Standards, amendmenfs to published standards and interpretations to existing standards
that are applicable to the Bank but not yet effective {continuedq)

(iii) Financial year beginning on/after 1 January 2015

= MFRS 9 “Financial instruments — classification and measurement of financial
assets and financial liabilities” (effective from 1 January 2015) replaces the
multiple classification and measurement medels in MFRS 138 with a single model
that has only two classffication categories : amortised cost and fair value. The
basis of classification depends on the entity’s business model for managing the
financial assets and the contractual cash flow characteristics of the financial asset.

The accounting and presentation for financial liabilites and for de-recognising
financial instruments has been relocated from MFRS 139, without change, except
for financial liabiliies that are designated at fair value through profit or loss
("FVTPL"). Entiies with financial liabilittes designated at FVTPL recognise
changes in the fair value due to changes in the liability’s credit risk directly in other
comprehensive income (OCI). There is no subsequent recycling of the amounts in
OCI to profit or loss, but accumulated gains or losses may be transferred within
equity.

The guidance in MFRS 139 on impairment of financial assets and hedge
accounting continues to apply.

The Bank has not finalised the impact of the change to MFRS and is now in the midst of
implementing the MFRS139 collective assessment methodology and will complete this

process prior to the release of the interim results for the financial period ending 30 June
2012

™~
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INTEREST INCOME RECOGNITION
Interest income is recognised on an accrual basis using the effective interest method.

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the amortised cost of a financial asset or
financial liability and of allocating the interest income or interest expense over the relevant period.
The effective interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts the expected future cash payments or
receipts through the expected life of the financial instrument, or when appropriate, a shorter period,
to the net carrying amount of the instrument. When calculating the effective interest, the Bank
estimates cash flows (using projections based on its experience of customers' behaviour)
considering all contractual terms of the financial instrument but excluding future credit losses. Fees
are included in the calculation to the extent that they can be measured and are considered to be
an integral part of the effective interest rate. :

Where an account is classified as impaired, the Bank reduce the carrying amount to its
recoverable amount, being the estimated future cash flow discounted at the original effective
interest rate of the instrument, and continue unwinding the discount as interest income. Interest
income on impaired loan and receivables are recognised using the original effective interest rate.

Interest income from securities portfolio is recognised on an accrual basis using the effective interest
method. The interest income includes coupons eamedfaccrued and accretion/amortisation of
discount/premium on these securities. '

RECOGNITION OF FEES AND OTHER INCOME

Loan arrangement fees and commissions are recognised as income when all conditions precedent
are fulfilled.

Commitment fee income relating to loans and guarantee fees is recognised over the period during
which the related service is provided or credit risk is undertaken.

Dividends from securities are recognised in the income statement when the right to receive
payment is established.

N
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OTHER PROVISIONS
Provision are recognised when all of the following conditions have been met:

{i) The Bank has a present legal or constructive obligation as a result of past events:
(i) Itis probable that an outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation; and
(iii) A reliable estimate of the amount can be made.

Where the Bank expect a provision to be reimbursed, the reimbursement is recognised as a
separate asset but only when the reimbursement is virtually certain. Provisions are not recognised
for future operating losses.

Where there are a number of similar obligations, the likelihood that an outflow will be required in
settlement is determined by considering the class of obligations as a whole. A provision is
recognised even if the likelihood of an outflow with respect to any one item included in the same
class of obligations may be small.

Provisions are measured at the present value of the expenditures expected to be required to settle
the obligation using & pre-tax rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of
money and the risks specific to the obligation. The increase in the provision due to passage cof time
is recognised as finance cost expense.

REPURCHASE AGREEMENTS
Securities purchased under resale agreements are securities which the Bank has purchased with a

commitment to resell at a future date. The commitment to resell the securities is reflected as an asset
on the statement of financial position.
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FINANCIAL ASSETS
(a) Classification

The Bank classifies financial assets into financial assets at fair value through profit or loss,

. financial investments available-for-sale, and loans and receivables. The classification
depends on the purpose for which the financial assets were required. Management
determines the classification of the financial assets at initial recognition, at the point when the
transactions are entered into.

(i) Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are financial assets held for
trading. A financial asset is classified in this category if it is acquired or incurred
principally for the purpose of sefling or repurchasing it in the near term. Derivatives
are also categorised as held for trading unless they are designated as hedges.

Financial assets may be designated at fair value through profit or loss when;

= the designation eliminates or significantly reduces a measurement or
recognition inconsistency that would otherwise arise from measuring assets or
liabilities on a different basis; or

= a group of financial assets is managed and its performance evaluated on a fair
value basis; or
" the assets include embedded derivatives and such derivatives are required to

be récognised separately
(i) Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable
payments that are not quoted in an active market and it is expected that substantially
all of the initial investment will be recovered, cother than because of credit
deterioration.

(iii,l\ Financial investments available-for-sale

Financial investments available-for-sale are non-derivatives that are either
designated in this category or not classified in any of the other categories, and are
subsequently measured at fair value, with unrealised gains and losses arising from
changes in fair value recognised in equity, net of income tax, until such securities are
sold, collected or otherwise disposed of, or until such securities are determined to be
impaired. e
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

FINANCIAL ASSETS (CONTINUED)

(b)

()

(d)

FINANCIAL LIABILITIES

Recognition and initial measurement

Regular purchases and sales of financial assets are recognised on the trade date, the date
that an asset is delivered to or by the Bank.

Financial instruments are initially recognised at their fair value plus transaction costs directly
attributable to the acquisition or issuance of the instruments. For financial instruments
classified as fair value through profit and loss, transaction costs are expensed off.

Subsequent measurement

Financial investments available-for-sale and financial assets at fair value through profit or
loss are subsequently carried at fair value. Loans and receivables are subsequently carried at
amortised cost using the effective interest method.

Changes in the fair values of financial assets at fair value through profit or loss, including the
effects of currency translation, interest and dividend income are recognised in profit or loss in
the period in which the changes arise,

Changes in the fair value of financial investments available-for-sale are recognised in other
comprehensive income, except for impairment losses (see accounting policy Note H) and
foreign exchange gains and losses on monetary assets. The exchange differences on
monetary assets are recognised in profit or loss, whereas exchange differences on non-
monetary assets are recognised in other comprehensive income as part of fair value change.

Dividends income on available-for-sale equity instruments are recognised in profit or loss
when the Bank's right to receive payments is established.

De-recognition

Financial assets are de-recognised when the rights to receive cash flows from the
invgstments have expired or have been transferred and the Bank has transferred
substantially all risks and rewards of ownership.

When financial investments available-for-sale are sold, the accumulated fair value
adjustments recognised in other comprehensive income are reclassified to profit or loss,

LN

Financial liabilities are measured at amortised cost, except for trading liabilittes and liabilities
designated at fair value, which are held at fair value through profit or loss. Financial liabilities are
initially recognised at fair value plus fransaction costs for all financial liabilities not carried at fair value
through profit or loss. Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss are initiglly recognised at
fair value, and transaction costs are expensed in profit or loss. Financial liabilities are derecognised
when extinguished.
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FINANCIAL LIABILITIES (CONTINUED)
(a) Financial liabilities at falr value through profit or loss

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss are financial liabilities held-for-trading. A
financial liability is classified as held-for-trading if it is acquired or incurred principally for the
purpose of seliing or repurchasing it in the near term or if it is part of a portfolio of identified
financial instruments that are managed together and for which there is evidence of a recent
actual pattern of short-term profit-taking. Derivatives are also categorised as held-for-trading
unless they are designated as hedges.

Gains and losses arising from changes in fair value of financial liabilities classified held for
trading are included in profit or loss. ‘

(b) Other liabilities measured at amortised cost

Financial liabilities that are not classified as at fair value through profit or loss fall into this
category and are measured at amortised cost. Financial liabilities measured at amortised cost
are deposits from customers and bills and acceptances payable.

IMPAIRMENT OF FINANCIAL ASSETS

The Bank assesses at each balance sheet date whether there is objective evidence that a financial
asset or group of financial assets is impaired. A financial asset or a group of financial assets is
impaired and impairment losses are incurred only if, there is objective evidence of impairment as a
result of one or more loss events that occurred after the initial recognition of the asset ('a loss
event’) and that loss event (or events) has an impact on the estimated future cash fiows of the
financial asset or group of financial assets that can be reliably estimated.

The criteria that the Bank uses to determine that there is objective evidence of an impairment loss
include:

(a) Significant financial difficulty of the issuer or obligor;

(b) Acbreach of contract, such as a default or delinquency in interest or principal payments;

© The lender, for economic or legal reasons refating to the borrower's financial difficulty,
granting to the borrower a concession that the lender would not otherwise consider;

(d) It becomes probable that the borrower will enter bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation;

{e) The disappearance of an active market for that financial asset because of financial difficulties;

(H Observable data indicating that there is a measurable decrease in the estimated future cash

flows from a pottfolio of financial assets since the initial recognition of those assets, although
the decrease cannot yet be identified with the individual financial assets in the portfolio,

inciuding:

0] adverse changes in the payment status of borrowers in the portfolio;

(i) national or local economic conditions that correlate with defaults on the assets in the
portfolio.
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(a) Assets carried at amortised cost

Loans and advances

The Bank first assesses whether objective evidence of impairment exists individually for
loans and advances that are individually significant, and individually or collectively for
loans and advances that are not individually significant.

If the Bank determines that no objective evidence of impairment exists for an individually
assessed loans and advances, whether significant or not, it includes the asset in a group
of loans and advances with similar credit risk characteristics and collectively assesses
them for impairment.

If there is objective evidence that an impairment loss has been incurred, the amount of
the loss is measured as the difference between the loans and advances’ carrying amount
and the present value of estimated future cash flows (excluding credit losses that have
not been incurred) discounted at the original effective interest rate. The carrying amount
of the loans and advances is reduced through the use of an allowance account and the
amount of the loss is recognised in the profit or loss. If the loans and advances has a
variable interest rate, the discount rate for measuring any impairment loss is the current
effective interest rate determined under the contract.

For the purposes of a collective evaluation of impairment, loans and advances are
grouped on the basis of similar risk characteristics, taking into account asset type,
industry, geographical location, collateral type, past due status and other relevant factors.
These characteristics are relevant to the estimation of future cash flows for groups of such
assets by being indicative of the counterparty’s ability to pay all amounts due according to
the contractual terms of the assets baing evaluated.

Future cash flows in a group of loans and advances that are collectively evaluated for
impairment are estimated on the basis of the contractual cash flows of the assets in the
greyp and historical loss experience for assets with credit risk characteristics similar to
those in the group. Historical loss experience is adjusted based on current observable data
to reflect the effects of current conditions that did not affect the period on which the
historical loss experience is based and to remove the effects of conditions in the historical
period that do not currently exist. The methodology and assumptions used for estimating
future cash flows are reviewed regularly to reduce any differences between loss estimates
and actual loss experience.

LN
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(a) Assets carried at amortised cost (Continued)

Loans and advances (Continued)

In accordance with the transitional provisions under the Amendments to FRS 139, MASB
has included an additional transitional arrangement for entities in the financial secfor,
whereby BNM may prescribe an alternative basis for collective assessment of impairment
by banking institutions. This transitional arrangement is prescribed in BNM's Guidelines on
"Classification and Impairment Provisions for Loans/Financing" issued on 8 January 2010
and subsequently updated on 26 January 2010 and 17 December 2010, whereby banking
institutions are required to maintain collective assessment impairment allowances of at
least 1.5% of total outstanding loans and advances, net of individual assessment
impairment allowance. ‘

The Bank has adopted the transitional provisions under the Amendments to FRS 139 and
the collective assessment impairment allowance of the Bank has been determined based
on the fransitional arrangement issued by BNM.

If, in subsequent periods, the amount of the impairment loss decreases and the decrease
¢an be related objectively fo an event occurring after the impairment was recognised, the
previously recognised impairment loss is reversed by adjusting the allowance account.
The amount of the reversal is recognised in the profit or loss.

When a loan is uncollectible, it is written off against the related allowance for loan
impairment. Such loans are written off after all the necessary procedures have been
completed and the amount of the loss has been determined. Subsequent recoveries of
amounts previously written off are credited to profit or loss.

(b) Assets carried at fair value

When a decline in fair value of financial investments available-for-sale has been
resggnised directly in equity and there is objective evidence that the financial investment is
impaired, the cumulative loss that has been recognised directly in equity is removed from
equity and recognised in profit or loss even though the financial investment has not been
derecognised. The amount of cumulative loss is the difference between the acquisition
price (net of principal repayment and amortisation) and current fair value, less any
fmpairment loss on that financial investment previously recognised in profit or loss.

If, In subsequent periods, the fair value of a financial investment availaf:l'e-for-sale
increase and the increase can be objectively related to an event occurring after the
impairment was recognised in the profit or loss, that portion of impairment loss is reversed
through profit or loss. For equity instruments, no reversal of impairment loss through profit
or loss is allowed when there is an increase in fair value of the equity instrument in
subsequent pericd.
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IMPAIRMENT OF NON-FINANCIAL ASSETS

Assets that have an indefinite useful life are not subject to amortisation and are tested annually for
impairment. Assets that are subject to amortisation are reviewed for impairment whenever events
or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount may not be recoverable. An
impairment loss is recognised for the amount by which the carrying amount of the asset exceeds its
recoverable amount. The recoverable amount is the higher of an asset’s fair value [ess costs to sell
and value in use. For the purposes of assessing impairment, assets are grouped at the lowest
levels for which there is separately identifiable cash flow (cash-generating units).

The impafrment loss is charged to the income statement unless it reverses a previous revaluation
in which case it is charged to the revaluation surplus. Any subsequent increase in recoverable
amount is recognised in the income statement unless it reverses an impairment loss on a revalued
-asset, in which case it is taken to revaluation surplus.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and accumulated
impairment losses, if any. Cost includes expenditure that is directly attributable to the acquisition of
the items.

Depreciation of other property, plant and equipment is calculated to write-down the cost of the
property, plant and equipment to the residual value on a straight line basis over the expected useful
lives of the assets concerned. The principal annual rates of depreciation are:

Office equipment and furniture 10 - 33%
Computer eguipment and software 25 - 50%
Motor vehicles 25%
Bank premises alterations

- movable 10%
- non-movable written off over lease terms

Depreciation on works-in-progress commences when the assets are ready for their intended use.

Residual \:a}ue and useful lives of assets are reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at each
balance sheet date.

Gains and losses on disposals are determined by comparing proceeds with carrying amount and
are included in profit before taxation.

" At each balance sheet date, the Bank assesses whether there is any indication of ifnpairment.
Where an indication of impairment exists, the carrying amount of the asset is assessed and written
down immediately to its recoverabie amount. See accounting policy Note | on impairment of non-
financial assets.

Repairs and maintenance are charged to the income statement during the period in which they are
incurred. The cost of major renovations is included in the carrying amount of the asset when it is
probable that future economic benefits in excess of the originally assessed standard of
performance of the existing asset will flow to the Bank. Major renovations are depreciated over the
lease term of the Bank's premise.
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BILLS AND ACCEPTANCES PAYABLE

Bills and acceptances payable represents the Bank’s own bifls and acceptances rediscounted and
outstanding in the market.

DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENT AND HEDGE ACCOUNTING

Derivatives are initially recognised at fair value on the date on which a derivative contract is
entered into and are subsequently re-measured at their fair value.

Fair values are obtained from quoted market prices in active markets, including recent market
transactions, and valuation techniques, including discounted cash flow models and options pricing
models, as appropriate. All derivatives are carried as assets when fair value is positive and as
liabilities when fair value is negative.

The best evidence of the fair value of a derivative at initial recognition is the transaction price (i.e.
the fair value of the consideration given or received) unless the fair value of that instrument is
evidenced by comparison with other observable current market transactions in the same
instrument (i.e. without modification or repackaging) or based on a valuation technique whose
variables include only data from observable markets. When such evidence exists, the Bank
recognises profits on day one.

The method of recognising the resulting fair value gain or loss depends on whether the derivative
is designated as a hedging Instrument, and if so, the nature of the item being hedged. The Bank
designates certain derivatives as either: (1) hedges of the fair valuz of recognised assets or
liabilities or a firm commitment (fair value hedge); or, (2) hedges of highly probable future cash
flows attributable to a recognised asset or liability, or a forecasted transaction {cash flow hedge).
Hedge accounting is used for derivatives designated in this way provided certain criteria are met.

(a) Eair value hedge

Changes in the fair value of derivatives that are designated and qualify as fair value
hedges are recorded in the income statement, together with any changes in the fair vaiue
of-.th hedged asset or liability that are attributable to the hedged risk.

If the hedge no longer meets the criteria for hedge accounting, the adjustment to the
carrying amount of a hedged item for which the effective interest method is used is
amortised to profit or loss over the period to maturity. The adjustment to the carrying
amount of a hedged eguity security remains in retained earnings until the disposal of the
equity security.

[,
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DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENT AND HEDGE ACCOUNTING (CONTINUED)

(b)

(c)

Cash flow hedage

The effective portion of changes in the fair value of derivatives that are designated and
qualify as cash flow hedges is recognised in other comprehensive income. The gain or loss
relating to the ineffective portion is recognised immediately in the income statement.

Amounts accumulated in equity are recycled to the income statement in the periods in
which the hedged item will affect profit or loss (for example, when the forecast sale that is
hedged takes place).

When a hedging instrument expires or is sold, or when a ‘hedge no longer meets the

- criteria for hedge accounting, any cumulative gain or loss existing in equity at that time

remains in equity and is recognised when the forecast transaction is ultimately recognised
in the income statement. When a forecast transaction is no lenger expected to occur, the
cumulative gain or loss that was reported in equity is immediately transferred to the income
statement.

Derivatives that do not qualify for hedge accounting

Certain derivative instruments do not qualify for hedge accounting. Changes in the fair
value of any derivative instrument that does not qualify for hedge accounting are
recognised immediately in the income statement.

CURRENCY CONVERSION AND TRANSLATIONS

(@

(b)

Functional and presentation currency

The financial statements are presented in Ringgit Malaysia, which is the Bank's functional
and presentation currency.

Transactions and balances
I

Foreign currency transactions are translated into the functional currency using the
exchange rates prevailing at the dates of the transactions or valuation where items are
remeasured. Foreign exchange gains and losses resulting from the settlement of such
transaction at year-end exchange rates of monetary assets and liabilities denominated in
foreign currencies are recognised in the income statement, except when deferred in other
comprehensive income as qualifying cash flow hedges and qualifying net jnvestment
hedges.

Foreign exchange gains and losses that relate to borrowings and cash and cash
equivalents are presented in profit or loss within ‘finance income or cost’. All other foreign
exchange gains and losses are presented in profit or loss within.

For translation differences on financial investments available-for-sale, refer to Note F{(c).
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
INCOME TAXES

Current tax expense is determined according to the tax laws of Malaysia and includes all taxes
based upon the taxable profits for the financial year.

Deferred income tax is provided in full, using the liability method, on temporary differences arising
between the tax bases of assefs and liabilities and their carrying amounts in the financial
statements. However, deferred tax is not accounted for if it arises from initial recognition of an
asset or liability in a transaction other than a business combination that at the time of transaction
affects neither accounting nor taxable profit and loss.

Deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that it is probable that future taxable profits will be
available against which the temporary differences or unused tax losses can be utilised.

Deferred income tax related to fair value re-measurement of financial invesiments available-for-sale,
which are charged or credited directly to equity, is also credited or charged directly to equity and is
subsequently recognised in the income statement together with the deferred gain or loss.

Deferred tax is determined using tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantially
enacted by the balance shest date and are expected to apply when the related deferred tax asset is
realised or deferred tax liability is seftled.

Deferred and income tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a legally enforceable right to
offset current tax assets against current tax liabilities and when the deferred income tax assets and
liabilities relate to taxes levied by the same taxation authority on either the taxable entity or different
taxable entities where there is an intention to settle the balances on a net basis.

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
Cash and cash equivalents consist of cash and bank balances and short term funds that are readily

convertible to known amounts of cash and which are subject to an insignificant risk of change in
value.

™~
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
EMPLOYEE BENEFITS

(i) Short term employee benefits

Wages, salaries, paid annual leave, bonuses and non-monetary benefits are accrued in the
pericd in which the associated services are rendered by employees of the Bank,

(i) Post employment benefits

A defined contribution plan is a pension plan under which the Bank pay fixed contributions
to the national pension scheme, the Employees' Provident Fund (‘EPF’) and will have no
legal or constructive obligations to pay further contributions if the fund does not hold
sufficient assets to pay all employees benefits relating to employee service in the current
and prior periods.

The contributions to EPF are charged to the income statement in the period to which they
are related. Once the contributions have been paid, the Bank has no further payment
obligations in the future.

(fii) Equity compensation benefits

The share options granted to directors and employees of the Bank are that of the Bank's
uitimate holding company, Bank of America Corporation ("BOAC”) and the relevant
disclosures are made in BOAC's financial statements.

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES AND CONTINGENT ASSETS

The Bank does not recognise a contingent assets and liabilities but discloses its existence in the
financial statements. A contingent liability is a possible obligation that arises from past events
whose existence will be confirmed by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain
future events beyond the control of the Bank or a present obligation that is not recognised because
it is not probable that an outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation. A contingent
liability also arises in the extremely rare case where there is a liability that cannot be recognised
because 'itgannot be measured reliably.

A contingent asset is a possible asset that arises from past events whose existence will be
confirmed by the occurrence or non-occurrences of one or more uncertain future events beyond
the control of the Bank. The Bank does not recognise contingent assets but discloses its existence
where inflows of economic benefits are probable, but not virtually certain.
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CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND ASSUMPTIONS

The Bank's accounting policies and use of estimates are integral to understanding its reported
resuits. The Bank's most complex accounting estimates require management's judgement to
asceftain the valuation of assets and liabilities. The Bank has established detailed policies and
control procedures intended to ensure that valuation methods, including any judgements made as
part of such methods, are well-controlled, independently reviewed and applied consistently from
period to period. In addition, the policies and procedures are intended to ensure that the process
for changing methodologies occurs in an appropriate manner. The Bank believes its estimates for
determining the valuation of its assets and liabilities are appropriate. The following is a brief
description of the Bank’s critical accounting estimates involving significant valuation judgement.

(a) Fair value of financial instruments

The fair value of a financial instrument is defined as the amount at which the instrument
could be exchanged in a current transaction between willing parties, other than in a forced
or liquidation sale. The majority of the Bank's assets reported at fair value are based upon
quoted market prices or upon internally developed models that utilise independently
sourced market parameters, including interest rate yield curves, option volatilities and
currency rates.

The degree of management judgement involved in determining the fair value of a financial
instrument is dependent upon the availability of quoted market prices or observable
market parameters. For financial instruments that are traded actively and have quoted
market prices or parameters readily available, there is little-to-no subjectivity in
determining fair value. When observable market prices and parameters do not exist,
management judgement is necessary to estimate fair value. The valuation process takes
into consideration factors such as liquidity and concentration concerns and, for the
derivatives portfolio, counterparty credit risk.

The Bank’s held for trading financial assets are valued based upon quoted market prices.
The majority of the Bank's derivative positions are valued using internally developed
models that use as their basis readily observable market parameters — that is, parameters
that are actively quoted and can be validated to external sources, including industry-
pricing services. Ceriain derivatives, ‘however, are valued based upon models with
sigqificant unobservable market parameters — that is, parameters that must be estimated
and are, therefore, subject to management judgement to substantiate the model valuation.
These instruments are normally either traded less actively or trade activity is one way.
Management's judgement includes recording fair value adjustments (i.e., reductions) to
mode| valuations to account for parameter uncertainty when valuing complex or less
actively traded derivative fransactions.

(2] Allowance for losses on loans, advances and financing

The Bank makes allowance for losses on loans, advances and financing based on
assessment of recoverability. Whilst management is guided by the relevant BNM
guidelines, management makes judgement on the future and other key factors in respect
of the recovery of loans and advances. Among the factors considered are the net
realisable value of the underlying collateral value, the viability of the customer’s business
model, the capacity to generate sufficient cash flow to service debt obligations and the
aggregate amount and ranking of all cther creditor ¢laims.
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GENERAL INFORMATION

The Bank is principally engaged in all aspects of the banking business and in the provision of
related services.

The hoiding company of the Bank is Bank America International Financial Corporation, a
corporation incorporated in the United States of America.

The ultimate hoiding company of the Bank is Bank of America Corporation, a corporation
incorporated in the United States of America.

The Bank is a limited company, incorporated and domiciled in Malaysia.
The address of the registered office and principal place of operation of the Bank is at 18th Floor,

Wisma Goldhill, Jalan Raja Chulan, 50200 Kuala Lumpur, Malaysia.

CASH AND SHORT-TERM FUNDS

2011 2010
RM’'000 RM’000
Cash and balances with banks and
other financial institutions 15,373 166,073
Money at call and deposit placements maturing
within one month 1,264,583 1,050,911
1,279,956 1,216,984
SECURITIES AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE
Money market instruments:
Unguoted
Bank Negara Malaysia Bilis 49,893 114,614
Unguoteciw?eeurities in Malaysia:
Shares 4,341 4. 256
Bonds 15 15
Total securities available-for-sale 54,249 118,885
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LOANS, ADVANCES AND FINANCING

2011 2010 -
RM'000 RM'000
(i) Loans, advances and financing analysed by type:
At amortised cost:
Overdrafts 1,071 7,715
Claims on customers under acceptance credits 75,785 155,049
Staif loans 1,276 1,919
Revolving advances 104,863 48,352
Bills discounted 3,244 83,083
Real estate loans 2,598 3,115
Gross leans, advances and financing 188,837 299,233
Allowance for losses on loans, advances and financing
- Individual assessment (760) (1,656)
- Collective assessment (2,821 (4,459)
Total net loans, advances and financing 185,256 293,118
(i) Loans, advances and financing analysed by
£conomic purpose;
Purchase of fransport vehicles 78 212
Purchase of landed property (residential) 3,663 4,030
Personal use 52 151
Purchase of consumer durables 81 186
Working capital 184,963 294 644
188,837 299,233
(it} Loans, advances and financing analysed by
‘jc&e of customer:
Domestic business enterprises 128,584 56,067
Individuals 3,874 5,034
Foreign entities £6,379 238,132
188,837 299233
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LOANS, ADVANCES AND FINANCING (CONTINUED)

2011 2010
RM’000 RM'000
(iv) Loans, advances and financing analysed by
interest rate sensitivity:
Fixed rate
- Housing loans 1,077 1,001
- Other fixed rate loans 167,041 263,718
Variable rate
- BLRplus 3,669 10,744
- Cost plus 17,050 23,770
188,837 299,233
(v) Loans, advances and financing analysed by
residual contractual maturity
Within one year 168,029 270,814
One year to three years 17,594 24219
Three years to five years 784 702
Qver five years 2,430 3,498
188,837 299,233
(vi) Impaired loans, advances and financing
(a) Movements in impaired loans, advances and
~ financing are as follows:
At 1 January 2,000 2,689
Classified as impaired during the
financial year 1,172 1,396
- Interest income recognised during the
™~ financial year &7 -
Reclassified as performing during the
financial year (1,816) (333)
Amount recovered during the financial year (532) (1,752)
At 31 December 891 2,000
Individual assessment allowance (760) -+ {1,656)
Net impaired loans, advances
and financing 131 344
Gross impaired loans as a % of gross loans,
advances and financing - 0.47% 0.67%
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LOANS, ADVANCES AND FINANCING (CONTINUED)

(vi) Impaired loans, advances and financing (continued)

&) Movements in allowance for impaired loans,
advances and financing are as follows:

Individual assessment allowance

At 1 January
Allowance made during the financial year
Write back made during the financial year

At 31 December

Collective assessment allowance

At 1 January
Write back made during the financial year

At 31 December

As % of gross loans, advances and financing
less individual assessment allowance

OTHER ASSETS

Other receivables
Deposits
Prepayments

\

DERIVATIVE ASSETS

Derivative assets — foreign exchange forwards and swaps

37

2011
RM'000

1,656
(944)
760

4,459
(1,638)

2,821

1.50%

g2
1,023

1,147

19,567

2010
RM'000

5,492
742
{4,578)

1,656

5,000
(541)

4,459

1.50%

153
27
2,045

2,225

17,500
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - 31 DECEMBER 2011 (CONTINUED)

DERIVATIVE ASSETS (CONTINUED)

Contract or Year end
underlying positive
principal amount fair valug
RM'000 RM'000
2011
Foreign exchange related contracts: '
- forwards and swaps 2,361,238 19,567
2010
Foreign exchange related contracts:

- forwards and swaps 1,842,776 17,500

DEFERRED TAXATION

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a legally enforceable right to set off
current tax assets against current tax liabilities and when the deferred taxes relate to the same tax
authority. The following amounts, determined after appropriate offsetting, are shown in the
statement of financial position:

2011 2010

RM'060 RM'000

Deferred tax assets ' 1,025 1,122
Deferred tax liabilities (2,308) (2,365)
(1,283) {1,243)
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DEFERRED TAXATION (CONTINUED)

The movement in deferred tax assets and liabilities during the year comprises the following: -

General

allowance

RM'000

At 1 January 2011 1,115
(Charged)/credited to income statement {90}
Charged to AFS reserve -
As at 31 December 2011 1,025
At 1 January 2010 1,250
Charged to income statement (135}
Charged to AFS reserve -
As at 31 December 2010 1,115

Acceleratad

tax AFS

depreciation reserve Total
RM'000 RM'000 RM’G00
(1,753) (B05) (1,243)
75 (5) (19)
- (21) {21)
(1.877) (631) {1,283)
(345) (495) 410
(1,408) - (1,543)
- (110) {110}
(1,753) {605) (1,243)

STATUTORY DEPOSIT WITH BANK NEGARA MALAYSIA

The non-interest bearing statutory deposit is maintained with Bank Negara Malaysia in compliance
with Section 26(2)(c} of the Central Bank of Malaysia Act,2009, the amount of which is determined

as a sef percentage of total eligible liabilities.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - 31 DECEMBER 2011 (CONTINUED)
PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (CONTINUED)
The gross amount of assets fully depreciated but still in use amounted to RM9,307,752 (2010:

RM@,364,955).

DEPOSITS FROM CUSTOMERS

2011 2010
RM'000 RM 000
Demand depasits 608,010 598,159
Saving deposits 333 466
Fixed deposits 345 583 221,026
063,926 819,651
(i} Maturity structure of fixed deposits is as follows:
Due within six months 321,903 175,207
Six months to cne year 201 668
One year to five years 23,257 44,934
More than five years 222 217
345,583 221,026
(] The deposits are sourced from the following types of
customers:
Business enterprises 945 497 801,398
Individuals 7,446 16,659
Others ' 983 1,594
953,926 819,651
™~
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - 31 DECEMBER 2011 (CONTINUED)

DEPOSITS AND PLACEMENTS OF BANKS AND OTHER FINANCIAL INSTITUTIONS

2011
RM'000
Licensed banks 44,373
Other financial institutions 11,802
56,175
OTHER LIABILITIES

Unearned discount on loans, advances and financing 123
Other payables 858
Accruals 1,641
2,522

DERIVATIVE LIABILITIES

Derivative liabilities — foreign exchange forwards and swaps 18,360

Contract or

underlying
principal amount
RM'000
2011
Foreign exchange related contracts:
- forwards and swaps 2,361,238
2010
™~
Foreign exchange related contracts:

- forwards and swaps 1,842,776

43

292
578
1,414

2,284

19,446

Year end
negative

fair value
RM'000

18,380

19,448
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - 31 DECEMBER 2011 (CONTINUED)

SHARE CAPRITAL

2011 010
RM000 RM'000
Authorised:
250,000,000 ordinary shares of RM1 each 250,000 250,000
Issued and fully paid.

135,800,000 ordinary shares of RM1 each 135,800 135,800

RESERVES

(i)

(iif)

The statutory reserve is maintained in compliance with Section 36 of the Banking and
Financial Institutions Act 1989 and is not distributable as cash dividends.

A single tier company tax was introduced effective 1 January 2008. Under this single tier
system, tax on a company’s profits is a final tax, and dividends distributed to shareholders
will be exempted from tax. Companies with Section 108 tax credit balance are given an
option to elect to move to a single tier system immediately or allowed to use the Section
108 credit balance for the purpose of dividend distribution during a transitional period of 6
years until 31 December 2013.

The Bank has elected to use its Section 108 credit balance for the purpose of dividend
distribution during a transitional period of 6 years until 31 December 2013. The Section
108 balance of the Bank as at 31 December 2007 will be frozen and can only be adjusted
downwards for any tax discharged, remitted or refunded during the 6 years period.

Subject to agreement by the Inland Revenue Board, the Bank has sufficient tax credits
under Section 108(6) of the Income Tax Act, 1967 and tax exempt income to frank
dividends out of its retained profits as at 31 December 2011.

Movement of the fair value reserve of available-for-sale securities is as follows:

2011 2010
- RM'000 RM'000
™~

At 1 January 1,827 1,475
Net change in revaluation reserve

of financial assets available-for-sale 86 462

Deferred taxation (21) (110)

At 31 December 1,892 L 1,827
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - 31 DECEMBER 2011 (CONTINUED)

INTEREST INCOME

Loans, advances and financing

Money at call and deposit placements with
banks and other financial institutions

Securities available for sale

Derivatives

Total interest income

INTEREST EXPENSE

Deposits and placements of banks and other
financial institutions

Deposits from customers

Derivatives

Others

OTHER OPERATING INCOME
Fee income

Commission

Service charges and fees

Guarantee fees
Other fee income

Gross dividend income from

Securities Available-for-sale

Unrealised gain/{ioss) on revaluation of derivatives

Derivatives — foreign exchange forwards and swaps

Other income

Realised foreign exchange gain

Reimbursement of information technology expenses
Gain on sale of property, plant and equipment
Others

45

2011
RM'000

5,988
20,954
1,887
38

37,867

651
7,727
1,083

9,444

944
3,964
390
1,507

6,805
13

1,183
14,100
1,776
40

17,123

23,528

2010
RM'000

8,230
22,398

2,403
31

33,062

687
4,651
598

5,857

1,362
3,967

582
1,423

7,334

13

(1.9486)

13,716

11,783

19,117
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - 31 DECEMBER 2011 (CONTINUED)

OTHER OPERATING EXPENSES

Personnel costs

Salaries, aliowances and bonuses
Defined contribution plans
Other staff related cost

Establishment costs

Property, plant and equipment

- depreciation

Rental of premises

Rental of equipment

Repair and maintenance
Information technology expenses
Others

Marketing expenses

Advertising and publicity
Others

Administration and general expenses

Auditors’ remuneration

- statutory audit fees

- non-aydit fees

Communication expenses

Legal and professional fees

Stationery and postages

Shared administrative support expenses
Others

46

2011

RM'000

8,515
1,394
2,178

12,087

. 3,865
922
757

1,343
1,629
1,235

9,751

289
154

453

57

791
382
363
12,152
930

14,729

37,020

6,065
203
357

7,315

1,073
834
320

2,704

2,216
694

7,841

192
147

339

57

80
403
383
-368
1,880
2,491

5772

21,267
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - 31 DECEMBER 2011 (CONTINUED)

REMUNERATION OF CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER (‘CEQ’) AND DIRECTORS

The aggregate remuneration of the Directors of the Bank is as follows:

2011 2010
RM'000 RM'000

Executive Directors and CEO
- Salaries 682 551
- Benefits-in-kind (based on estimated monetary value) 113 23
- Bonus 149 194
- Defined contribution plan - 143 124
- Others 64 34

Non-Executive Directors

- Fees 100 100
1,251 1,026

The remuneration attributable to the Chief Executive Officer of the Bank, including benefits-in-kind
during the financial year amounted to RM1,151,211 (2010: RM926,401).

The remuneration of the Directors of the Bank is within the following bands:

2011 2010
No. of No. of
Directors Directors
Executive
RM
900,001 — 950,000 - 1
1,150,001 — 1,200,000 1 -
Executive/Non-Executive/independent
RM
0 - 50,000 6 5

™~

WRITE BACK OF LOSSES CN LOANS, ADVANCES AND FINANCING

2011 2010
RM’000 RM’000
Allowance for loans, advances and financing e

Individual assessment allowance :

- written back (944) (4,578)

- made during the financial year : 48 742

Collective assessment written back (1,638) (541)

Bad debts on loans, advances and financing

- recovered (117) {308)

- written off 148 -

(2,503) {(4,685)
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - 31 DECEMBER 2011 (CONTINUED)

SIGNIFICANT RELATED PARTY DISCLOSURES

(@)

Related parties and relationships

The related parties of, and their relationship with the Bank are as follows:

Related parties

Bank of America Corporation

Bank America International Financial
Cerporation

Bank of America National Association
- New York Branch

Bank of America National Association
- 8an Francisco Branch

Bank of America National Association
- Labuan Branch

Bank of America National Association
- Singapore Branch

Bank of America National Association
~ L.ondon Branch

Bank of America National Association
- Canada Branch

Bank of America National Association
- Bangkok Branch

Bank of America National Association
- Jakarta Branch

nk of America Natjional Association
- Mimbai Branch

Bank of America National Association
- Sydney Branch

Bank of America National Association
- Tokyo Branch

Bank of America National Association
- Hong Keng Branch

Smith Zain (Penang) Sdn. Bhd.

48

Relationshi

Ultimate holding company

immediate holding company
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Branch of the ultimate holding company
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Branch of the ultimate holding company
Branch of the ultimate holding company
Branch of the ultimate holding company
Branch of the ultimate hclding company
Branch of the ultimate holding company
Branch of the ultimate holding company
Branch of the uitimate holding corppany

Branch of the ultimate holding company

Subsidiary of the ultimate holding company
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - 31 DECEMBER 2011 {CONTINUED)

SIGNIFICANT RELATED PARTY DISCLOSURES (CONTINUED)
(&) Related parties and relationships (continued)
The related parties of, and their relationship with the Bank are as follows: {continued)
Key management personnel The key management personnel
of the Bank consists of:

(i}  All Directors of the Bank
(i) Senior management of the Bank

Related parties of key management (i)  Close family members and

personnel (deemed as related to the dependents of key management
Bank) personnel

(i)  Entities that are controlled, jointly
controlted or significantly influenced
by, or for which significant voting
power in such entity resides with,
directly or indirectly by key
management personnel or its close
family members

(b} Significant related party balances and transactions

A number of banking transactions are entered into with related parties in the normal course
of business. These transactions were carried out on commercial terms and at market rates.
The volume of related party transactions, outstanding balances at the financial year end,
and the corresponding expense and income for the financial year are as follows:

Key Other
management related
personnel companies
RM'000 RM'000
2011
Income
™~
Interest on deposits and placements
with other financial institutions - 177
interest on loans, advances and financing 13 -
Reimbursement of information technology expenses - 1,776
Management fee - 317
13 2,270
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - 31 DECEMBER 2011 (CONTINUED)

22 SIGNIFICANT RELATED PARTY DISCLOSURES (CONTINUED)

(b) Significant related party balances and transactions (continued)

2011

Expenditure

Interest on deposits and placements

of banks and cther financial institutions
Interest on deposits from customers
Management fee

Amount due from

Deposits and placements
Loans, advances and financing
Interest receivable

Amount due to

Deposits and placements
Interest payable

50

Key
management

personnel
RM'000

Other
related

companies
RM'000

170,880

170,881

56,699
108

56,807
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(Incorperated in Malaysia)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - 31 DECEMBER 2011 (CONTINUED)

22 SIGNIFICANT RELATED PARTY DISCLOSURES (CONTINUED)

(b) Significant related party balances and transactions {continued)
Key Other
management related
personnel companies
RM'000 RM'000
2010
Income
Interest on deposits and placements
with other financial institutions - 364
Interest on loans, advances and financing 17 -
Management fee - 308
17 6872
Expenditure
Interest on deposits and placements
of banks and other financial institutions - 620
Management fee - 1,411
- 2,031
Amount due from
Deposits and placements - 321,292
Loans, advances and financing 496 -
Interest receivable - 4
496 321,296
Amount due to
Deposits and placements - 291,088
Intexest payable - 281
- 291,369
Approved fimit
2011 2010
RM'000 RM'000
The approved limit on loans, advances and financing
for key management personnel 1,170 1,170
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - 31 DECEMBER 2011 (CONTINUED)

SIGNIFICANT RELATED PARTY DISCI.OSURES (CONTINUED)
{c) Key management personnel

The remuneration of key management personnel are as follows:

20M 2010
RM’000 RM'000

Short-term employee benefits
- Fees 100 100
- Salary and other remuneration 1,798 1,553
- Benefits-in-kind 177 23
2,075 1,676

The above remuneration includes directors remuneration as disclosed in Note 20 to the financial
statements.

TAXATION

2011 2010
RM'000 RM'000

Malaysian income tax
Current year 4,232 6,002
{Over)/under provision of prior years taxation {569) 31
Deferred taxation (Note 7) _ 19 1,536
Tax charge for the financial year 3,682 7,569

Numerical reconciliation between the average effective tax rate and the applicable tax rate

The average effective tax rate of the Bank differs from the statutory income tax rate of Malaysia as
follows:

™~ 2011 2010

% %

Statutory/average income tax rate of Nlaléysia 24 20
{Cver)/under provision of prior years taxation (3) -
Deferred taxation - 5
Average effective tax rate 21 25
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - 31 DECEMBER 2011 (CONTINUED)

COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES

In the normal course of business, the Bank makes various commitments and incurs certain
contingent liabilities with legal recourse to its customers. No material losses are anticipated as a

result of these transactions.

The commitments and contingencies constitute the following:

2011 2010

Principal Principal

amount amount

Description RN'000 RM’C00
Direct credit substitutes 38,497 26,302
Transaction related contingent ltems 20,763 69,017
Short term self liquidating trade related contingencies 4,517 2,206

Foreign exchange related contracts

One year or less 2,248,020 1,842,778
Other commitments, such as formal standby facilities and
credit lines, with an original maturity of up to one year 345,937 379,559
Total 2,657,734 2,319,860
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - 31 DECEMBER 2011 (CONTINUED)

EARNINGS PER SHARE

The earnings per share has been calculated based oh profit after taxation of RM14,152,353 (2010:
RM22,070,829) and the weighted average number of ordinary shares in issue during the financial
year of RM135,800,000 (2010: RM135,800,000).

CAPITAL ADEQUACY
The capital adequacy ratios of the Bank are as follows:
2011 2010

RM’000 RM'0G0
Tier-| Capital
Share capital 135,800 135,800
Statutory reserves 126,373 122,835
Retained profits . 225,168 214,554

487,341 473,189

- Deferred tax asset - -

Total Tier-I capital 487 341 473,189
Tier-ll Capital

Collective assessment allowance 2,821 4,452
Total capital base ' 490,182 477 641

Capital ratios

Core capital ratio 115.16% 90.26%
Risk-weighted capitat ratio 115.83% 91.11%
™~

The detailed disclosures on the risk-weighted assets as set out in Notes 26(a), (b), and (¢) are
presented in accordance with Bank Negara Malaysia's revised Risk-Weighted Capital Adequacy
Framework: Standardised Approach for Credit and Market Risk, and Basic indicator Approach for
Operational Risk (Basel i),
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - 31 DECEMBER 2011 (CONTINUED)

CAPITAL ADEQUACY (CONTINUED)

The breakdown of risk-weighted assets in the various categories of risk-weights:

2011 2010
Risk-~ Risk-
Principal weighted Principal weighfed
RM'000 RM'000 RM'000 RM'000
(i)  Credit Risk
0% 1,165,761 - 770,399 -
20% 182,679 36,536 578,721 115,744
35% 809 283 955 334
50% 88,555 44,278 258,521 129,261
75% 707 530 654 490
100% 254,624 254,624 . 192,005 192,005
1,693,135 336,251 1,801,255 437,834
(i)  Market Risk* - 1,919 - 774
(i) Operational Risk - 85,017 - 85,625
- 1,693,135 423,187 1,801,255 524,233

* The capital adequacy ratios have incorporated market risk pursuant to BNM's guideline on
Market Risk Capital Adequacy Framework which is effective from 1 April 2005.

Pursuant to BNM's circular, “Recognition of Deferred Tax Assets (‘DTA’} and Treatment of DTA
for RWCR Purposes” dated 8 August 2003, deferred tax income/(expense) is excluded from the
computation of Tier 1 capital and deferred tax assets are excluded from the calculation of risk
weighted assets.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - 31 DECEMBER 2011 (CONTINUED)

CAPITAL ADEQUACY (CONTINUED)

(a) The breakdown of the Bank’s risk-weighted assets ("RWA”) by exposures is as follows:

Risk
2011 Net weighted Capital
Exposure class Gross exposures exposures assets requirements
RM'000 RM'000 RM'000 RM'000
Credit risk.
On-balance sheet exposures:
Sovereigns/central banks 1,163,343 1,163,343 - -
Banks, Development Financial
Institutions (“DFIs™) &
Multilateral Development
Banks ("MDBs") 227,473 227,473 59,686 4,775
Corporates 130,174 130,174 120,377 9,630
Residential morigages 1,700 1,700 906 72
Other assets 18,930 18,930 16,512 1,321
Defaulted exposures 138 138 133 11
Total on- balance sheet
exposures 1,541,758 1,541,758 197 614 15,809
Off-balance sheet exposures:
OTC derivatives 33,126 33,126 28,629 2,290
Off balance sheet exposures
other than OTC derivatives or
credit derivatives 118,969 118,251 110,008 8,801
Total off- balance sheet
exposures 152,095 151,377 138,637 11,091
Total on and off- balance shest
exposures 1,693,853 1,693,135 336,251 26,900
by Long Short | -
Market risk: position |  position |
Foreign currency risk 1,919 5 1,919 154
Operational rigk 85,017 6,801
Total RWA and capital
requirements 423,187 33,855
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BANK OF AMERICA MALAYSIA BERHAD

(Incorporated in Malaysia)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - 31 DECEMBER 2011 (CONTINUED)

CAPITAL ADEQUACY {CONTINUED)

(a} The breakdown of the Bank's risk-weighted assets ("RWA") by exposures is as follows:

(continued)

Risk
2010 Net weighted Capital
Exposure class Gross exposures exposures assets requirements
RM'000 RM'000 RM'000 RM'000
Credit risk
On-batance sheet exposures:
Sovereigns/central banks 769,236 769,236 - -
Banks, Development Financial '
Institutions ("DFIs") &
Multilateral Development
Banks (“MDBs") 782,707 782,707 222,817 17,825
Corporates 74,570 74,570 61,534 4,922
Residential mortgages 1,768 1,766 903 72
Other assets 13,625 13,625 12,462 996
Defaulted exposures 52 52 52 4
Total on- balance sheet
exposures 1,641,956 1,641,956 297,768 23,819
Off-balance sheet exposures:
OTC derivatives 22,939 22,939 9,139 731
Off balance sheet exposures
other than OTC derivatives or
credit derivatives 137,163 136,360 130,827 10,474
Total off- balance sheet
exposures 160,102 159,299 140,066 11,205
Total on and off- balance sheet
exXposures 1,802,058 1,801,255 437,834 35,024
e Long Short
Market risk position |  position
Foreign currency risk 774 425 774
Operational risk 85,625 6,717
Total RWA and capital
requirements 524,233 41,803
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BANK OF AMERICA MALAYSIA BERHAD

(Incorporated in Malaysia)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - 31 DECEMBER 2011 (CONTINUED)

CAPITAL ADEQUACY (CONTINUED)

()

The Off-Balance Sheet exposures and their related counterparty credit risk of the Bank are

as follows:
Positive
fair value
of Credit Risk
2011 Principal derivative | equivalent weighted
Description amount contracts amount® assets
RM'000 RM'000 RM'000 RM'000
Direct credit substitutes 38,497 [ o 38,497 31,702
Transaction related contingent lems 20,763 10,382 8,543
Short term self liguidating trade related
contingencies 4,517 | 903 576
Foreign exchange refated contracts = o L
One year or less 2,248,020 19,365 33,126 28,629
Other commitments, such as formal standby e
facilities and credit lines, with an original maturity :
of up to one year 345,937 i 69,187 69,187
Total 2,657,734 19,365 152,095 138,637
Positive
fair value
of Credit Risk
2010 Principal derivative | equivalent weighted
Description amount contracts amount* assets
RM'000 RM'000 RM'000 RM'000
Direct credit substitutes 26,302 B : 26,302 23,607
Transaction related contingent ltems 68,017 : 34,509 31,183
Short term self liquidating trade related :
contingencies 2,206 441 226
Foreign exchange related contracts . _‘ :
One year or less 1,842,776 17,105 22 939 9,139
Other commitments, such as formal standby
facilities and credit lines, with an original maturity '
of up to one year 379,559 : - 75,912 75,012
Total .. 2,319,860 17,105 160,103 140,067

*

0

The credit equivalent amount is arrived at using
Malaysia Guidelines.

60

the credit conversion factor as per Bank Negara
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BANK OF AMERICA MALAYSIA BERHAD
(Incorporated in Malaysia)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - 31 DECEMBER 2011 (CONTINUED)

CAPITAL ADEQUACY (CONTINUED)

(d)

The Off-Balance Sheet exposures and their related counterparty credit risk of the Bank are
as follows;

In the normal course of business, the Bank make various commitments and incurs certain
contingent liabilities with legal recourse to their customers. No material losses are
anticipated as a result of these transactions.

Nature of commitments and contingencies

Direct credit substitutes comprise guarantees undertaken by the Bank to support the
financial obligations of their customers to third parties.

Certain transactions related contingent items represent financial products whose
crystallisations are dependent on specific events other than default payment by the
customers. They include performance retated contingencies and standby letter of credit,

Short term self liquidating trade-related contingencies relate to bills of exchange which
have been endorsed by the Bank and represent liabilities in the event of default by the
acceptors and the drawers of the bills,

Foreign exchange related contracts are agreements or options to buy or sell fixad amounts
of currency at agreed rates of exchange on a specified future date.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - 31 DECEMBER 2011 {CONTINUED)

USE OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

Financial risk management objectives and policies

The financial risk management objectives and policies of the Bank are managed by the various risk
committees within the Bank.

Market risk management

The Bank is exposed to market risk as a consequence of the normal course of conducting its
business activities. Market risk is the potential of loss arising from adverse changes in market rates
of products such as foreign exchange, securities, interest rate, money and their derivative products.
The Bank has established trading limits, an allocation process, operating controls and reporting
requirements o manage risk, ensure compliance and provide accurate information. On an overall
level, market risk is managed using the ‘Daily Earnings at Risk’ or DEAR model. This model
evaluates risk in terms of potential loss associated with those financial instruments, based on
historical price changes. Additionally, Net Position Limits are defined. .

The Bank's market risk on derivatives arises from foreign exchange related contracts which
comprise of forward contracts and options. The risk of option contracts is minimised as these
transactions are entered into on a back to back basis. The risk of forward contracts is managed on
a portfolio basis by currency.

The Bank's ability to estimate potential losses that could arise from adverse changes in market
conditions is a key element of managing market risk. While quantitafive measures are integral to
the process, judgement and experience are crucial in assessing whether the Bank's level of market
risk is acceptable.

Credit risk management

Credit risk is the risk that counterparty will fail to perform on an obligation to the Bank. This risk
exists in both on and off- balance sheet items, such as loans and leases, certain securities, letters
of credit, financial guarantees, unfunded loan commitments and settlement risk.

In order to manage the credit exposure, the bank assesses the creditworthiness of each borrower
and counterparty and assigns it a risk rating on a 10 point scale. This enables credit officers to
assess credit risk in all lines of business in the Bank in a uniform and consistent manner.
Generally, the amount of limit sanctioned is linked to credit ratings and poor ratings require
approval ffc?rn higher levels of management,

Portfolio Management officers are responsible for the angoing management and administration of
credit by:

- Monitoring performance by updating the customer analysis and reviewing annually;

- Regularly meeting customers and obtaining relevant financial information; )

- Recognising developing problems and promptly bringing them to the attention of management;

- Taking prompt corrective action on past due and non-accrual loans; and

- Maintaining proper credit file documentation and determining compliance with ail loan
covenants periodically.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - 31 DECEMBER 2011 (CONTINUED)

USE OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)

Financial risk management objectives and policies (continued)

Liguidity risk management

Liquidity risk is defined as the risk that the Bank either does not have available sufficient financial
resources to enable it to meet its obligations as and when they fall due, or can secure them only at
excessive cost, thereby affecting profitability.

The primary means of implementing the liquidity policy is through placement of limits on short-
dated money and foreign exchange positions. Liquidity limits are applied to two maturity periods:
Cash and 7-Day. Cash positions are the net of all cash flows on the first business day following the
reporting date and 7-Day positions are the net of all cash flows over the first seven business days.

The Bank also complies with various regulatory guidelines regarding required liquidity levels and
periodically monitors its liquidity position in light of the changing economic environment and
customer activity.

QOperational risk management

Operating risk is the risk that the Bank will be subjected to unexpected loss due to deficiencies or
failures in the information systems, operational and accounting processes, or internal controls
{such as unauthorised activities, fraud, unchecked errors and omissions).

Operating risks are difficult to quantify compared to market and credit risks and are evaluated by

examining a series of plausible ‘worst case’ or ‘what if’ scenarios, such as a doubling of transaction

volume.

In order to minimise these risks, the Bank has established and maintained an effective internal
control system. The objective is fo promote effective and effisient operations, reliable financial and
regulatory reporting and compliance with bank policies and relevant laws and regulations. Towards
this end the Bank's operations went through a full-scale inspection by the 1SO team and were
awarded the ISO 9001 certification.
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Company No.
310983 | V

BANK OF AMERICA MALAYSIA BERHAD
(Incorporated in Malaysia)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - 31 DECEMBER 2011 (CONTINUED)

USE OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)
Interest rate risk (continued)

The tables below summarises the effective average interest rates by major currency for each class
of financial asset and financial liability:

2011 2010
MYR USD GBP EUR AUD MYR Uspb
% % % % % % %

Financial assets
Cash and short-term funds 3.00 0.05 - - 415 278 0.20
Deposits and placements with banks - - 055 - - - -
Securities available-for-sala 3.01 - - - - 2.84 -
Loans, advances and financing 368 143 - - - 497 1.60

Financial liabilities

Deposits from customers 295 020 035 005 3.93 2.66 0.13
Deposits and placements of banks

and other financial institutions 3.00 042 - - - 275 0.37
Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Bank is unable to mest its cash flow obligations as they fall due,
such as upon the maturity of deposits and loan draw downs.

It is unusuai for any bank to completely match the maturity profile of its assets and liabilities as
business transacted is often of uncertain terms and of different types. Therefore, controlled
mismatching of the maturities of assets and liabilities is fundamental to prudent liquidity risk
management of the Bank.

The Bank closely monitors its liquidity risk profile with a variety of tools which includes cash flow
forecasts. and maturity mismatch reports, For Malaysian Ringgit in particular, the Bank has
establishea’funding guidelines on the amount of external funding it obtains and conducts regular
stress-testing to ensure that it will be able to meet its obligations when they come due.
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Company No.
310983 | V

BANK OF AMERICA MALAYSIA BERHAD
{Incorporated in Malaysia)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - 31 DECEMBER 2011 (CONTINUED)

USE OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)

Liquidity risk (continued)

Non-derivative financial liapilities (continued)

The following table presents the contractual expiry by maturity of the Bank's commitment and
contingencies: ’

One year Over one
of less vear Tofal
RM’000 RM'000 RM'000
011
Direct credit substitutes 28,105 10,392 38,497
Transaction related contingent items 7,465 13,298 20,763
Short term self liquidating trade related ‘
contingencies 2,420 2,097 4517
Other commitments, such as formal standby
facilities and credit lines, with an original
maturity of up to one year 345,937 - 345,937
383,927 25,787 409,714
2010
Direct credit substitutes 17,462 8,840 26,302
Transaction related contingent items _ 60,271 8,746 69,017
Short term self liquidating trade related
Contingencies 2,206 - 2,206
Other commitments, such as formal standby
facilities and credit lines, with an original
maturity of up to one year
379,559 - 379,559
459,498 17,586 477,084
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Company No.
310083 | V

BANK OF AMERICA MALAYSIA BERHAD

(Incorporated in Malaysia)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - 31 DECEMBER 2011 (CONTINUED)

USE OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)

Currency risk (confinued)

N

10

Assets

Cash and short-term funds

Securities available-for-
sale (‘'AFS’)

Loans, advances
and financing”®

Other assets*

Derivative assets

Statutory deposit with
Bank Negara Malaysia

Liabilities

Deposits from customers

Deposits and placements
of banks and other
financial institutions

Bills and acceptances
payable

Other liabilities®

Derivative liabilities

Currency gap

MYR USD SGD Others Total
RM'000 RM'000 RM'000 RM'000 RM'000
1,216,876 88 19 1 1,216,984
118,885 - - - 118,885
69.415 223,703 - - 293,118
7 146 - - 153
17,500 - - - 17,500
900 - . - 900
1,423,583 223,937 19 1 1,647,540
548,805 259,466 319 11,061 819,851
11,578 290,042 - - 302,520
35,723 1,744 - - 37,467
470 68 - 40 578
19,446 - - - 19,446
616,022 552,220 319 11,101 1,179,662
807,561 (328,283) (300) (11,100)

A This “represents outstanding loans, advances and financing after deducting individual
assessment allowance and collective assessment allowance.

*  This represents other receivables,

@ This represents other payables.
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Company No.
310983 | V

BANK OF AMERICA MALAYSIA BERHAD
(Incorporated in Malaysia)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - 31 DECEMBER 2011 (CONTINUED)

USE OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)
Credit risk

Maximum exposure to credit risk

The table below shows the maximum exposure to credit risk for the components of the statement of
financial position, including derivative financial instruments.

The maximum exposure is shown gross, without taking account of any collateral held or other credit
enhancements.

Note 2011 2010
RM000 RM'000

Assets
Cash and short-term funds 2 1,279,956 1,216,284
Deposits and placements with banks . 8,006 -
Securities available-for-sale (‘AFS) 3 49 908 114,629
Loans, advances and financing® . 4 188,837 299,233
Other assetls 92 153
Derivative assets 8 19,587 17,500
Total assets* 1,544,366 1,648,499
Commitments and contingencies 2,657,734 2,319,860
Total credit exposure 4,202 100 3,968,359

Excludes collective impairment and individual impairment of RM3,581,045 (2010: RM8B,115,418).
*  Excludes unquoted shares, prepayments and deposits.

Risk concentrations for commitments and contingencies are based on the credit equivalent
balances in Note 26(c).

Where financial instruments are recorded by fair value, the amounts shown above represent the
current credit risk exposure but not the maximum risk exposure that could arise in the fufure as a
resuit of changes in values.

Collaterals

The main types of collaterals obtained by the Bank are as follows:

(a) Fixed depcsits : .
(b) Residential properties

The Bank also accepts non-tangible securities such as support, guarantees from corporate and
institutions which are subject to internal guidelines on eligibility.
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Company No.
310983 | V

BANK OF AMERICA MALAYSIA BERHAD
{Incorporated in Malaysia)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - 31 DECEMBER 2011 (CONTINUED)

USE OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)
Credit risk (continued)

Loans, advances and financing

Loans, advances and financing are summarised as follows:

Neither past due nor impaired
Past due but not impaired
Individually impaired

Gross

Less: Allowance for losses on loans, advances and financing

- Individual assessment allowance
- Collective assessment allowance

Net

(a) Loans, advances, and financing neither past due nor impaired

2011 2010
RM'000 RM'000
187,352 297,041
594 192
891 2,000
188,837 299,233
(760) (1,656)
(2,821) {4,459)
185,256 293,118

The credit quality of the portfolio of loans, advances and financing that were neither past
due nor impaired can be assessed by reference to the internal rating system adopted by

the Bank.
_ Large
corporate
customers  Staff loans Mortgages Total
RM'000 RM’000 RM’000 RM'000
2011
{RR1) — Exceptional - - - -
(RR2) — Excellent 76,004 - - 76,094
(RR3) — Strong 2,500 - - 2,500
(RR4) — Good 9,077 1,276 3 10,356
(RRS) — Satisfactory 36,355 - ) 36,355
(RR8B) — Acceptable 60,937 - 1,110 62,047
Total 184,963 1,276 1,113 187,352

*RR = Risk Rating
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310083 | V

BANK OF AMERICA MALAYSIA BERHAD

(Incorporated in Malaysia)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - 31 DECEMBER 2011 (CONTINUED)

USE OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)

Credif risk (continued)

Loans, advances and financing (continued)

(a) Loans, advances and financing neither past due nor impaired (continued)

corporate
customers  Staffloans  Mortgages Total
RM’000 RM000 RM'000 RM'000
2010
(RR1) — Exceptional - - -
(RR2) — Excelient - - 7,569
{RR3} ~ Strong 10,805 - - 10,805
{(RR4) — Good 1,528 - 1,528
{RR5) — Satisfactory 99,386 - - 99,386
{RR8) — Acceptable 178,258 - 1,495 177,753
Total 294,018 1,528 1,495 297,041
*RR = Risk Rating
{b) Loans, advances and financing past due but not impaired

Late processing and other administrative delays on the side of the borrower can lead to a
financial asset being past due but not impaired. Therefore, loans, advances and financing
less than 90 days past due not usually considered impaired, unless other information is
available to indicate the contrary. Gross amount of loans, advances and financing by
class to customers that were past due but not impaired were as follows:

2011

Past due up to 30 days
Past dug 30 - 60 days

Past due 60 ~ 90 days

Past due more than 90 days

Total

86

Mortgages
RM'000

465
86
43
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BANK OF AMERICA MALAYSIA BERHAD
(Incorporated in Malaysia)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - 31 DECEMBER 2011 (CONTINUED)

USE OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)

Credit risk (continued)

(b) Loans, advances and financing past due but not impaired {continued) -
Mortgages
RM'G00
2010
Past due up to 30 days 107
Past due 30 — 60 days 51
Past due 60 — 90 days 14
Past due more than 90 days 20
Totai 182

(c)

Loans, advances and financing individually impaired

The breakdowns of the amount if individually impaired loans, advances and financing by

class are as follow:

Large
corporate
customers Mortgages Total
RM'000 RM’000 RM'000
2011
Gross impaired ' - 891 891
Less: Individual allowance - (760) (760)
Net impaired - 131 131
2010
Gross amount 152 1,457 2,000
Less: Individual allowance (149) (1,292) (1,656)
Net impaired 3 165 344
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BANK OF AMERICA MALAYSIA BERHAD
(Incorporated in Malaysia)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - 31 DECEMBER 2011 (CONTINUED)

USE OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)
Credit risk (continued)

Credit guality of financial assets

The table beiow presents an analysis of the credit quality of treasury bills and securities for the
Bank by rating agency as at 31 December are summarised as follows:

Available-for-sale

Cash and Bank Unguoted
Short-term funds  Negara Bills securities Total
RN'000 RM'000 RM’000 RM’000
2011
AAA 1,114,868 49,893 15 1,164,778
2010
AAA 1,216,984 114,614 15 1,331,613
Market risk

Market risk sensitivity assessment is based on the changes in key variables, such as interest rates
and foreign currency rates, while all other variables remain unchanged. The sensitivity factors used
are assumptions based on parallet shifts in the key variables to project the impact on the assets
and liabilities position of the Bank as at 31 December 2011,

The scenarios used are simplified whereby it is assumed that all key variables for all maturities
move at the same time and by the same magnitude and do not incorporate actions that would be
otherwise taken by risk management to mitigate the effect of this movement in key variables. In
reality, the Bank proactively seek to ensure that the interest rate risk profile is managed fo
minimise losses and optimise net revenues.

Interest/grgﬂt rate risk sensitivity analysis

Impact on
profit after tax
RM'000
2011
+ 50 basis points . 879
+ 25 basis points 438
- 10 basis points (174)
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BANK OF AMERICA MALAYSIA BERHAD
(Incorporated in Majaysia)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - 31 DECEMBER 2011 (CONTINUED)

USE OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)

Market risk (continued)

Interest/profit rate risk sensitivity analysis (continued)

Impact on
profit after tax
RM'000

2010
+ 50 basis points 1,029
+ 25 basis points 515
- 10 basis points _ (205)
Foreign currency sensitivity analysis
2011
+ 5% (2,829)
- 5% 2834
2010
+ 5% 5
- 5% %)

FAIR VALUE OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

Financial instruments comprise financial assets, financial liabilities and off-balance sheet financial
instruments. Fair value is the amount at which a financial asset could be exchanged or a financiai
liability settled, between knowledgeable and willing parties in an arm’s length transaction, The
information presented herein represents the estimates of fair values as at the balance sheet date.

Where available, quoted and observable market prices are used as the measure of fair values.
Where suth quoted and observable market prices are not available, fair values are estimated
based on a range of methodologies and assumptions regarding risk characteristics of various
financial instruments, discount rates, estimates of future cash flows and other factors. Changes in
the uncertainties and assumptions could materially affect these estimates and the resulting fair
value estimates.

In addition, fair value information for non-financial assets and liabilities are excluded as they do not
fall within the scope of FRS 132 which requires the fair value information to be disclosed. These
include fixed assets, investment in subsidiaries and associates and intangibles.

A range of methodologies and assumptions had been used in deriving the fair values of the Bank's
financial instruments at balance sheet date.

89




28

Company No.
310083 | V

BANK OF AMERICA MALAYSIA BERHAD
{Incorporated in Malaysia)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - 31 DECEMBER 2011 (CONTINUED)

FAIR VALUE OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)

Short-term funds and deposits and placements with financial institutions

For short-term funds and deposits and placements with financial institutions with maturities of less
than one year, the carrying value is a reasonable estimate of fair value. For short-term funds and
deposits and placements with financial institutions, the fair values approximate the fair value as
these balances are subject to variable interest rate.

Securities availabie-for-sale

The Bank uses the following hierarchy for determining and disclosing the fair value of securities
available for sale: '

Level 1: quoted prices in active markets for the same instrument (i.e. without modification or
repackaging)

Level 2: quoted prices in active markets for similar assets or liabilities or other valuation techniques
for which all significant inputs are based on observable market data; and

Level 3: valuation techniques for which any significant input are not based on observable market
data.

The following table shows an analysis of financial instruments recorded at fair value by level of the
fair value hierarchy:

Fair value measurement at end of the financial vear using:

2011 Total Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
. RMO0Q RM’'000 RM'000 RM'000
Description
Bank Negara Malaysia Bills 49,893 - 49,893 -
Unguoted shares 4,341 - - 4,341
Total 54,234 - 49,893 4,341
N
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BANK OF AMERICA MALAYSIA BERHAD
(Incorporated in Malaysia)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - 31 DECEMBER 2011 (CONTINUED)

FAIR VALUE OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)

Securities available-for-sale (continued)

(a) Reconciliation from beginning to ending balances for Level 3 securities available-for-sale

Unguoted
shares
RM'C00
2011
Opening balance 4,256
Total gain or loss
- in profit ) -
- in other comprehensive income 85
Purchases | -
Settlement -
Closing balance 4,341
(b} Gains or losses recognised in income statement for Level 3 securities available-for-sale
Unquoted
shares
RM'000
2011
Total gain or losses for the year included in
profit or loss for assets held at the end of the
financial year 85

Loans, advances and financing
For floating rate loans, the carrying value is generally a reasonable estimate of fair value.

For fixed rate loans, the fair value is estimated by discounting the estimated future cash flows using
the prevailing market rates of loans with similar credit risks and maturities.

The fair values of impaired floating and fixed rate loans are represented by their carrying value, net
of specific allowance and interest-in-suspense, being the expected recoverable amount.

&
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BANK OF AMERICA MALAYSIA BERHAD
(Incorporated in Mafaysia)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - 31 DECEMBER 2011 (CONTINUED)

FAIR VALUE OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)

Deposits from customers

For deposits from customers with maturities of less than one year, the carrying amounts are a
reasonable estimate of their fair value. For deposit with maturities of one year or more, the fair values
approximate the fair value as these balances are subject to variable interest rate.

Depcesits and_placements of banks and other financial institutions

The estimated fair values of deposits and placements of banks and other financial institutions with
maturities of less than one year approximate the carrying values. For deposits and placements with
maturities six months or more, the fair values approximate the fair vaiue as these balances are subject
to variable interest rate.

Other assets and other liabilities

The carrying value less any allowances included in other assets and other liabilities are assumed to
approximate their fair values as these jtems are not materially sensitive to the shift in market interest
rates.

Bills and acceptance payable

The estimated fair values of bills and acceptance payable with maturities of less than one year
approximate the carrying values. For bills and acceptances payable with maturities of one year or
more, the fair values are estimated based on discounted cash flows using prevailing money market
interest rates for bills and acceptances payable with similar periods to maturity.

As at the end of the year, the carrying amounts of all balances in the ﬂnancial statements of the
Bank approximate the fair values.
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BANK OF AMERICA MALAYSIA BERHAD
{(Incorporated in Malaysia)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - 31 DECEMBER 2011 (CONTINUED)

APPROVAL OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The financial statements have been approved for issue in accordance with a resolution of the Board of

Directors on 2 3 M AY 2012
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BANK OF AMERICA MALAYSIA BERHAD
(Incorporated in Malaysia)

STATEMENT BY DIRECTORS PURSUANT TO
SECTION 169(15) OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 1965

We, Ong Guat Kee and Richard David Maloney Jr, being two of the Directors of Bank of America
Malaysia Berhad, state that, in the opinion of the Directors, the financial statements set out on
pages 12 to 93 are drawn up so as to give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Bank as
at 31 December 2011 and of the results and cash flows of the Bank for the financial year ended on
that date and in accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act, 1965, MASB Approved
Accounting Standards in Malaysia for Entities Other than Private Entities and Bank Negara
Malaysia Guidelines.

Signed on behalf of the Board of Directors in accordance with their resolution dated 23 May 2012

ONG GUAT .I:(——EE RICHARD DAVID MALONEY JR
DIRECTOR DIRECTOR

STATUTORY DECLARATION PURSUANT TO SECTION 169(16)
OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 1965

I, Hee Wei Jean, the officer primarily responsible for the financial management of Bank of America
Malaysia Berhad, do solemnly and sincerely declare that the financial statements set out cn pages
12 to 93 are, in my opinion, correct and | make this solemn declaration censcientiously believing
the same fo be true, and by virtue of the provisions of the Statutory Declarations Act, 1960.

HEE WETJEAN

Subscribed and solemnly declared by the above named Hee Wei Jean at Kuala Lumpur on
23 May 2012 , before me.

COMMISSIONER FOR OATHS

NO. 102 & 104 ist FLOOR BANGUNAN
PERSATUAN YAP SELANGOR
TALAN TUN HS LEE

94 50000 KUALA LUMPUR
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT TO THE MEMBERS OF
BANK OF AMERICA MALAYSIA BERHAD

{Incorporated in Malaysia)

(Company No. 310983 V)

REPORT ON THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

We have audited the financial statements of Bank of America Malaysia Berhad, which comprise the
statement of financial position as at 31 December 2011, and the statement of comprehensive income,
statement of changes in equity and statement of cash flow for the year then ended, and a summary of
significant accounting policies and other explanatory notes, as set out on pages 12 to 93.

Directors’ Responsibility for the Financial Statements

The directors of the Bank are responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of financial
statements that give a true and fair view in accordance with the Financial Reporting Standards in
Malaysia, MASB Approved Accounting Standards in Malaysia for Entities Other than Private Entities,
Bank Negara Malaysia Guidelines and the Companies Act 1965, and for such internal controls as the
directors determine are necessary to enable the preparation of Financial Statements that are free from
material misstatements, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditors’ Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit. We
conducted our audit in accordance with approved standards on auditing in Malaysia. Those standards
require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
‘assurance whether the financial statements are free from material misstatement. :

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures
in the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on our judgment, including the
assessment of risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error. In making those risk assessments, we consider internal control relevant to the Bank’s
preparation of financial statements that give a true and fair view in order to design audit procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the Bank’s internal control. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of
accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made by the directors, as well
as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our audit opinion.

PricewaterhouseCoopers (AF 1146), Chartered Accountants,
Level 10, 1 Sentral, Jolan Travers, Kuala Lumpur Sentral, P.O. Box 10192, 50706 Kuala Lumpur, Malaysia
T: +60 (3) 2173 1188, F: +60 (3) 2173 1288, www.pwe.com/my ’
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT TO THE MEMBERS OF
BANK OF AMERICA MALAYSIA BERHAD (CONTINUED)

{Incorporated in Malaysia)
(Company No. 310983 V)

REPORT ON THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
Opinion

In our opinion, the financial statements have been properly drawn up in accordance with the Financial
Reporting Standards in Malaysia, MASB Approved Accounting Standards in Malaysia for Entities
Other than Private Entities, Bank Negara Malaysia Guidelines and the Companies Act 1965 so as to
give a true and fair view of the financial position of the Bank as of 31 December 2011 and of its
financial performance and cash flows for the year then ended.

REPORT ON OTHER LEGAL AND REGULATORY REQUIREMENTS
In accordance with the requirements of the Companies Act, 1965 in Malaysia, we also report that, in
our opinion, the accounting and other records and the registers required by the Act to be kept by the

Bank have been properly kept in accordance with the provisions of the Act.

OTHER MATTERS

This report is made solely to the members of the Bank, as a body, in accordance with Section 174 of the
Companies Act, 1965 in Malaysia and for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility to any
other person for the content of this report.

s emitkednelon— W

PRICEWATERHOUSECOOPERS SO0 HOO OON YEAN
(No. AF: 114%) (No. 2682/10/13 (J))
Chartered Accountants Chartered Accountant

Kuala Lumpur, Malaysia
1g June 2012
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